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Chairman’s Letter

Apr 10, 2012

In 2011, the global economy remained relatively upbeat, supported
by the ongoing global rebalancing and the continued monetary
policy easing. Europe’s slow and insufficient response to the
sovereign debt crisis and the drama around lifting the US debt
ceiling, weighed down on financial market and eroded business and
consumer confidence. However, the temporary peaking of inflation
in 2H11, particularly in emerging market countries, opened the door
for their policymakers to embark on pre-emptive policy loosening to
support growth. The Chinese economy in 2011 experienced slower
growth and higher inflation, although the latter has been brought
down considerably due to the impact of very successful policy
.actions by the Chinese government through mid-2011. These include
administrative measures put in place to deal with bottlenecks in
agricultural products and the PBOC raised required reserve ratios 12
times and interest rates 5 times. The worst time for secular growth is
likely to be behind us. Proactive policy easing measures taken

towards the end of 2011 should help smooth macro cyclicality.

Following regulatory policy and guidance in 2011, the bank
maintained a high quality loan portfolio while focusing on
continuing to build the deposit client base, among others, to enhance
liquidity management. The trading desk remained the main profit

contributor of the bank. In addition, taking advantage of its expertise,
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the bank enhanced fee income through syndication, entrusted loans,
and general advice on the Chinese bond market to the Morgan
Stanley group. As of 31 December 2011, total assets of the bank
increased by RMB912 million or 19% from those in 2010, and total
liabilities of the bank increased by RMBS858 million or 24% also
from the previous year. The profitability of the bank remains stable
with net profit of RMBS55 million in 2011. Given the favorable net
interest margin that Chinese banks enjoy, profitability could be
enhanced in future years if, among other things, the bank became
more comfortable to accept slightly higher risk in its corporate loan

portfolio.

In May 2011, the board appointed Cathy Zeng as the General
Manager and Executive Director of the bank. Cathy has worked for
-Morgan Stanley since 2005 where she was a member of the China
IRCC sales team focusing on coverage of Sovereign Wealth Funds
and financial institutions. Prior to Morgan Stanley, Cathy worked for

Barclays and for SAFE.

During the year 2011, the bank

o Strengthened its dialogue with regulators;
o Developed a comprehensive three year strategic plan;
o Reviewed its organizational structure, achieving greater clarity

on reporting lines;
o Moved its core banking system onshore;

) Finished Basel III gap analysis and action plan;
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o Enhanced the risk management team, systems, procedures and
processes;

. Developed a prudent liquidity management framework;

. Substantially completed the investment in IT and risk

management systems for the derivatives license; -

o All financial ratios met regulatory requirements.

The main challenges in 2011 were related to both market conditions
and the bank’s continued structural shortComings, such as the lack of
a diverse product range and limited ability to develop a large and
diversified deposit base, as well as strict internal liquidity
management policies and requirements following FSA guidelines.
Recently, the bank’s ALCO developed and proposed a more flexible
liquidity management framework that treats China and the bank with
. a ring-fenced approach. This framework was approved, and it is in
the process of implementation. Structural shortcomings remain and
will take more time to be successfully addressed, particularly as they

are very dependent on the ability to obtain new product licenses.

In 2012, the bank continues to be committed to grow its corporate
lending and loan syndication business in an orderly and prudent
manner, and to take every effort to reasonably follow the CBRC
requirements and expectations in a manner consistent with the

bank’s and its parent’s expertise.
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China is a critical part of Morgan Stanley’s global strategy and
priority. We are fully committed to this market with a long-term
view and gradual development strategy. Although there are
challenges, we believe that we have a bright and prosperous future
ahead on which we will capitalize with the joint efforts from the

board, the bank management team and all staff.

%W

Chairman of

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited
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BASIC INFORMATION

Registered Corporate Name in Chinese:

PER PRI E B RAT CRED A RA
Registered Corporate Name in English:

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited
Legal Representative: Carlos Alfonso Oyarbide

Registered Address: 28/F 2801-2807, 2816, Yuecai Building,
No0.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai, Guangdong, P. R. China

Office Address: 28/F 2801-2807, 2816, Yuecai Building, N0.188
Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai, Guangdong, P. R. China

Date of First Registration: 14 December 1984
Authority of Registration:
Guangdong Provincial Administrative Bureau of Industry and Commerce

Corporate Business License Serial Number: 440000400000859

Financial Institution License Serial Number: B0029H144040001
Tax Registration Certificate Number: 2 [&Fi7440401X17502779"5

Bl 440401X 175027795
Auditor: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd

30/F Bund Center, 222 Yan An Road East, Shanghai 200002, PRC
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INTRODUCTION OF MORGAN STANLEY
BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited (“the Bank”) is
wholly owned by Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited, a

subsidiary of Morgan Stanley.

The Bank, formerly known as Nan Tung Bank Ltd, Zhuhai, is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley since September 2006.
Established in 1984 with the approval from the People’s Bank of
China, Nan Tung Bank was the first foreign-funded bank
incorporated and headquartered in mainland China. During the past
two decades, the Bank has been operating from its head office in
Zhuhai and providing banking products and services to its target
clients. Subsequent to its acquisition by Morgan Stanley, the Bank
officially changed its name on May 30, 2007 to Morgan Stanley

Bank International (China) Limited.

The Bank’s ultimate holding company is a leading global financial
services firm that provides a wide range of investment banking,
securities, investment management and wealth management services.
Morgan Stanley serves corporations, governments, institutions and

individuals worldwide from more than 1300 offices in 42 countries.

11
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SHARERHOLD NAME AND CHANGES

Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited is the sole shareholder

of The Bank. There has been no change within the reporting period.

BAERE R
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SHARERHOLD BACKGROUND
Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited (“MSBIL”), is a private
limited company duly incorporated on 23rd February 1999 and
existing in accordance with the laws of England, registered at the
Companies Registration Office for England and Wales under
number 3722571 and with registered office at 25 Cabot Square,
Canary Wharf, London E14 4QA, England. The principal activity of
MSBIL is the provision of financial services to corporations,
governments, financial institutions and individuals. Such financial
services include the provision of loans and loan facilities, repurchase
tendering to the European Central Bank and trading in loans and
financial instruments, including derivative contracts and repurchase
agreements. MSBIL holds a wholly owned subsidiary in China —
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited, and operates 1
branch respectively in each country of Italy, Germany and Korea.
MSBIL is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley
and had total assets in excess of USD 93 billion at its 2011financial

year-end.

AR R=TED
MSBILAE K BATME— R 2%, I #E S & JEAT SLAE ) BAT IR AR
HIHRDT. 201 14EMSBILAE Fo AE 43 WU A AT AH S FHIREAT T
FHE R MSBILFE FHA S URE B AR

o AT EMAT UL, I HARA 7 TN A8 T RF R 2 I
o FZPATIN LAEMY, B4 L EFHiiatEi, 20 Bk

13
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SHARERHOLD MEETING INFORMATION

MSBIL being the sole shareholder of the Bank, acts through its
Board of Directors. In 2011 the board of directors of MSBIL:

0 held regular quarterly meetings and ad hoc meetings when

required;

0 received reports on the Bank that covered: 1) Market updates,
2) Strategic Initiatives, 3) Business updates, and 4) Financial

updates

0 MSBIL board of directors also approves director/supervisor

nominees of the Bank and any new capital injection proposals.

BN EM R A L E IR

20114F, Ihnss/biEM A . 433 & I,

CHANGE IN REGISTERED CAPITAL, MERGER OR
SPIN-OFF

There are no changes in registered Capital, merger or spin-off in 2011.

14
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

Functions of the Board:
The board of directors shall be responsible to the Shareholder and exercise
the following powers in accordance with relevant laws and the articles of

association of the Bank:

(1) Formulating and amending the Bank’s articles of association;

(2) Determining the Bank’s business plans, investment plans and

strategic policies;

(3) Hearing, examining and approving the general manager’s work

reports;

(4) Examining and approving the annual final accounts of the Bank and

plans for dealing with any surplus profits;

20
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(5) Appointing and dismissing the Bank’s senior management personnel
and deciding on remuneration programs for directors, supervisors and

senior management personnel, and appointing external auditors;

(6) Examining and finalizing the establishment and the dissolution of the

Bank’s internal organizations;
(7) Reporting to the Shareholder on a regular basis;

(8) Approving the basic management system, internal rules and business

plans for daily operations of the Bank;

(9) Setting up various special committees, in accordance with the Bank’s
needs and actual circumstances, for making decisions in various areas
on behalf of the board of directors, or for providing expert opinions
in various areas to the board of directors, and for carrying out
inspection and supervision activities with respect to the business
situations in such areas. These special committees shall each have

clear objectives, powers and responsibilities;

(10) Examining and discussing capital increase, capital reduction, share

transfers and other important matters relating to the Bank;

(11) Determining and approving the establishment and termination of

business branches;

(12) Determining and approving the investment by the Bank in other

enterprises;

(13) Determining and approving profit allocation plans;

21
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(14) Approving any application for extension of the term of the Bank;

(15) Approving the conduct of court proceedings, arbitrations and other

legal proceedings on behalf of the Bank; and

(16) Other powers as stipulated by laws and regulations, and the Bank’s

articles of association, or authorized by the Shareholder.
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There were Six members on the Board of Directors of the Bank in
2011. Details are provided below:

1. Ms. Cathy Zeng studied in Wu Han University and then Renmin
University of China, obtained Bachelor of Economics and Master of
Management. From Sep 1992- Oct 2001, she assumed the Head of Euro
Credit Desk, SAFE; From Oct 2001- Apr 2005, she was a Director in
Barclays Capital Asia; From Apr 2005 to 2011, she was Executive
Director, Head of Asia Sovereign Wealth Fund Distribution, Morgan
Stanley Asia Ltd. On Sep 26th 2011, Cathy was appointed as executive
director of Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited (“MSBIC”)
with the approval from CBRC Guangdong. Effective from January 6th,
2012, Cathy was appointed as MSBIC general manager with the approval
from CBRC.

2. Mr. Elton Cheung obtained Bachelor of Economics, University of
Sydney in May 1995, and Bachelor of Laws (Honors), University of
Sydney in May 1997. He worked as a senior attorney with Freshfields
Bruckhaus Deringer in Hong Kong and London from January 1998 to
September 2006. He was one of the lead attorneys supporting the MS
Firm’s Merchant Banking Division across the entire Asia Pacific region
from September 2006 to December 2008. Then he became the senior
attorney on the China legal team in Morgan Stanley from December 2008
to June 2010. From June 2010 to present, he assumed the Head of the

China Legal team that provides legal support across all of Morgan
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Stanley’s China businesses, including its onshore as well as offshore

business platforms. Effective from April 1st, 2011, Elton was appointed as

MSBIC director with the approval from CBRC Guangdong.

3. Mr. Carlos Alfonso OYARBIDE was a partner of C.E.S.E.A from

March 1979 to May 1980. He acted as a managing partner at McKinsey &
Company from August 1982 to December 1985. From January 1986 to
May 1988, he was a director of Manhattan Bank in charge of the finance
department. He also worked at UBS Philips & Drew as an Executive
Director supervising the finance department. Mr Oyarbide joined Morgan
Stanley in July 1993 and worked for the Firm until May 2003; in this
decade, he held various positions including Managing Director and Head
of Mergers & Acquisitions of Morgan Stanley Europe Ltd, Managing
Director and Head of Mergers & Acquisitions of Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd,
as well as CEO of Morgan Stanley Spain Ltd. In 2003, he joined UBS as a
Managing Director and Asia Pacific Head of Financial Institutions Group
from June 2003 to July 2007. From July 2007 onwards, he has been a
Managing Director of Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd and the Chief Operating
Officer of Morgan Stanley China. On Sep 2008, Carlos was appointed as

director of MSBIC with the approval from CBRC Guangdong. Effective
from Aug 27, 2010, Carlos was nominated as MSBIC chairman after

obtaining the approval from CBRC.

4. Mr. Anthony Philip MULLINEAUX was qualified as an ACA and
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acted as Financial Statement Auditor to various financial institutions,

mainly within the insurance industry, with Coopers Lybrand from
September 1989 to November 1993. He joined Morgan Stanley in
November 1993, initially as a financial controller for European investment
grade bonds at Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited. From January
1995 to March 2002 he moved to Morgan Stanley UK Group as European
Debt Capital Markets and Interest Rate Structured Bonds Controller,
European Head of Asset Swap Controllers, European Head of Emerging
Markets, Asset Swaps, Credit Derivative Controllers and European Head
of Fixed Income Derivative Product Controllers Projects Team. From
April 2002 to March 2003, he became European Head of Fixed Income
Division Management Reporting and Operations Officer to European
Head of Fixed Income Controllers. From April 2003 to June 2005, he
worked as European Head of Credit and Product Controllers of Morgan
Stanley UK Group. From June 2005 to August 2007, he was European
Head of Fixed Income and Equities Valuation Review Group in Morgan
Stanley UK Group, where he was responsible for the independent audit of
financial instruments. From September 2007 until present, he has been the
Head of the Finance Control Group across the Asia Pacific (excluding

Japan) and Australasia region at Morgan Stanley.
5. Ms. Amanda Zhao studied in Renmin University of China and obtained

her Bachelor degree of Law in 1994. From July 1994 to Dec 1995, Ms
Amanda Zhao worked for ChemChina Group in Sales, Import & Export
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Dept. Since Jan 1996, she worked with the Mizuho Corporate Bank,
Beijing Branch as the Senior Accountant and then Senior Loan Officer.
Almost during the time from 1995 to 1999, she continued to pursue the
master degree in Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. From April 2000
to Sep 2009, she worked as the representative with Landesbank Baden-
Wouerttemberg, Beijing office. In Sep 2003. Ms, Amanda Zhao joined
Citic Ka Wah Bank, Beijing Representative Office as Chief
Representative. Since Jan 2006, she became the Head of the Preparatory
Office of Citic Ka Wah Bank. In Oct 2006, she played a role as First Vice
President, China Banking Dept. in Citic Ka Wah Bank, Hongkkong. In
March 2008, she was appointed as Beijing Branch manager of Citic Ka
Wah Bank until Aug 2008, and she held the concurrent post as the Deputy
General Manager during the time from June 2010 to Aug 2010. On Aug,
2010, Ms. Amanda Zhao joined Morgan Stanley and was approved by
CBRC Beijing as Beijing Branch manager later on Nov 2010. On April
27th 2011, Amanda was appointed as director of MSBIC with the

approval from CBRC Guangdong. Effective from April 28th, 2011,
Amanda was appointed as MSBIC deputy general manager with the

approval from CBRC Guangdong.

6. Mr. Shangquan Gao graduated from the Faculty of Economics of St.

Paul’s University in Shanghai with a degree in Economics. He is the
Chairman of the China Society of Economic Reform, the Chairman of

China Enterprise Reform & Development Society, the President of China
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Institute for Reform and Development (Hainan), and a member of the
United Nations Development Policy Committee. He is also a professor
and doctorial adviser at Beijing University, Shanghai Jiaotong University

and Nankai University, and the President and Professor of the School of
Management, Zhejiang University. Mr. Gao has been an independent

director of the Bank since September 2006.
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Senior Management Members:

The senior management of the Bank, under the leadership of the Board of
Directors, is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of the
Bank. The members of the Senior Management Committee are:

1. Ms. Cathy Zeng studied in Wu Han University and then Renmin
University of China, obtained Bachelor of Economics and Master of
Management. Sep 1992- Oct 2001: Head of Euro Credit Desk, SAFE; Oct
2001- Apr 2005: Director, Barclays Capital Asia; Apr 2005 to Present:
Executive Director, Head of Asia Sovereign Wealth Fund Distribution,
Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd. On Sep 26th 2011, Cathy was appointed as
executive director of MSBIC with the approval from CBRC Guangdong.
Effective from January 6th, 2012, Cathy was appointed as MSBIC general

manager with the approval from CBRC.

2. Mr, Steve Yang studied and received his Masters degree at Leeds
University, majoring in Economics. He worked at Aquazone London as a
market representative from 1998 to 1999. Mr. Yang moved back to China
and worked with U.S.Sino-sourcing Inc. as a manager of the purchasing
department from 1999 to 2000. He joined Standard Chartered Shenzhen
Branch, working as a senior consultant in cash management, from 2001 to
2004. He joined ABN-AMRO from June 2005 to August 2008, when he
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acted as regional compliance manager, China coverage compliance officer
and anti-money-laundering (AML) officer. Since August 25, 2008, Mr.
Yang has been the head of the Legal and Compliance department of
MSBIC.

3. Ms Cristine Wang, obtained the bachelor of accounting in Capital
University of Economics and Business, China Certified Public Accountant,
international Certified Internal Auditor and the qualification of securities.
From September 2002 to July 2007, Cristine assumed the senior auditor in
Ernst & Young Hua Ming. From July 2007 to July 2010, Cristine joined
JPMorgan Chase Bank (China) Limited as senior auditor. On July 2010,
Cristine joined Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited, as

internal auditor.

4. Ms. Linda Li obtained her Bachelor Degree of Accountancy from
Harbin Institute of Technology. And she also earned the qualification of
CPA in China. From September 1996 to May 2003, she worked for the
Dandong Branch of The Industry and Commercial Bank of China as
Accounting Manager. During June 2003 to July 2006, she worked with
Standard Chartered Bank Shanghai Branch as Finance Supervisor. From
August 2006 to May 2007, she worked in Development Bank of Singapore
as Financial Project Manager. On June 2007, she joined United Overseas
Bank acted as the head of Finance Department. Since February 2009, she
joined MSBIC and now takes the position as the head of the Finance

Department.
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5. Ms. Amanda Zhao studied in Renmin University of China and obtained
her Bachelor degree of Law in 1994. From July 1994 to Dec 1995, Ms
Amanda Zhao worked for ChemChina Group in Sales, Import & Export

Dept. Since Jan 1996, she worked with the Mizuho Corporate Bank,
Beijing Branch as the Senior Accountant and then Senior Loan Officer.
Almost during the time from 1995 to 1999, she continued to pursue the
master degree in Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. From April 2000
to Sep 2009, she worked as the representative with Landesbank Baden-
Wouerttemberg, Beijing office. In Sep 2003. Ms, Amanda Zhao joined
Citic Ka Wah Bank, Beijing Representative Office as Chief
Representative. Since Jan 2006, she became the Head of the Preparatory
Office of Citic Ka Wah Bank. In Oct 2006, she played a role as First Vice
President, China Banking Dept. in Citic Ka Wah Bank, Hongkkong. In
March 2008, she was appointed as Beijing Branch manager of Citic Ka
Wah Bank until Aug 2008, and she held the concurrent post as the Deputy
General Manager during the time from June 2010 to Aug 2010. On Aug,
2010, Ms. Amanda Zhao joined Morgan Stanley and was approved by
CBRC Beijing as Beijing Branch manager later on Nov 2010. On April
27th 2011, Amanda was appointed as director of MSBIC with the

approval from CBRC Guangdong. Effective from April 28th, 2011,
Amanda was appointed as MSBIC deputy general manager with the

approval from CBRC Guangdong.

6. Ms. Yena Lei holds a bachelor degree from Tianjin University of

Finance. From July 1991 to August 1993, she worked in the Industrial and
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Commercial Bank of China as Accountant. From September 1993 to
March 2002, she acted as a Deputy Branch Manger with Standard
Chartered Bank, Tianjin Branch. During April 2002 to January 2004, she
was appointed as Senior Officer in Operation department of Citibank. And
then she left for UBS, Beijing branch working as the Deputy Director.
Since May 2008, she joined MSBIC taking the role as vice president of
Operation Department. Effective from March 10th, 2011, Yena was
appointed as MSBIC Chief Information Officer with the approval from
CBRC Guangdong.
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Composition of the Board of Supervisors and its Work

Functions of the Board of Supervisors
The board of supervisors shall constitute the Bank’s supervisory

organization, responsible to the Shareholder, with the following powers:

(1) Exercising scrutiny over the acts of the directors and senior
management personnel in the performance of their duties that contravene
laws and regulations or the articles of association of the Bank; bringing
forward proposals for the removal of any director or senior management
member who violates any law, administrative regulation, the Articles of

Association or any resolution of the Shareholder’s meeting;

(2) Requesting the rectification of any acts of the directors and senior
management personnel that harm the rights and interests of the Bank,
Shareholder, employees, deposit customers, or other interested parties;

organizing the investigation of and proposing solutions for major cases;

(3) Examining and monitoring the Bank’s financial activities, and

examining the Bank’s annual final accounts;

(4) Reporting to the Shareholder on the status of work performance of the

directors and senior management personnel,
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(5) Initiating actions against directors or senior management according to
Article 152 of the PRC Company Law implemented, and which may be

amended from time to time, effective from 1st January 2006; and

(6) Other powers as stipulated by laws and regulations, and the Bank’s

articles of association, or authorized by the Shareholder.

The supervisors have the right to attend but not vote at meetings of the

board of directors.
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Composition of the Board of Supervisors
The Board of Supervisors is composed of three supervisors, and their

detailed information is as follows:

1. Mr. Christopher Jackson holds a bachelor degree from London
University and a masters degree from CASS, City University London.
From 1989 to 1995 he worked in London and New York for Merrill Lynch
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in Corporate Finance and Debt Capital Markets positions. Mr. Jackson
has been based in Asia since 1995. In this region, he has had
responsibility for Debt Capital Markets coverage and management of
Fixed Income and Equity business infrastructure. Prior to joining Morgan
Stanley Mr. Jackson's most recent role was the Chief Administrative

Officer for the Asia Pacific Equities business at Lehman Brothers from
2003 to 2008. Mr. Jackson joined Morgan Stanley in October 2008 as the
Chief Operating Officer of the Asia Pacific IRCC Division. In this role
Mr. Jackson is responsible for maintaining operational standards and
excellence in all the products functions of the business as well as aligning
the business with the Global & Regional franchises. Mr. Jackson is also
responsible for planning and executing the strategic growth of the business

in the region.

2. Mr. Brett Dugald Cameron Graham graduated from Queensland
University with Honours in Law in 1987. Prior to joining Morgan Stanley
in June 1997, he was an associate at Clifford Chance in Hong Kong and
Tokyo, and prior to that he did his legal training and worked as a solicitor,
at Morris Fletcher and Cross, Brisbane (now Minter Ellison), and
Hashidate Law Office in Tokyo. Brett was the Co-Chairman of Morgan
Stanley’s Franchise Risk Committee for Asia Pacific. Brett was previously
the Deputy Head of Legal for Asia Pacific. Brett Graham was based in
Hong Kong, and became a Managing Director of Morgan Stanley in 2005.
Brett is the General Counsel for Morgan Stanley for the Asia Pacific

region.
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3. Ms. Yena Lei holds a bachelor degree from Tianjin University of
Finance. From July 1991 to August 1993, she worked in the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China as Accountant. From September 1993 to
March 2002, she acted as a Deputy Branch Manger with Standard
Chartered Bank, Tianjin Branch. During April 2002 to January 2004, she
was appointed as Senior Officer in Operation department of Citibank. And
then she left for UBS, Beijing branch working as the Deputy Director.
Since May 2008, she joined MSBIC taking the role as vice president of
Operation Department. Effective from March 10th, 2011, Yena was
appointed as MSBIC Chief Information Officer with the approval from
CBRC Guangdong.
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Risk Management

During 2011, strictly following the management requirements of the
regulatory authority and the Board of Directors, the Bank continued to
make active efforts in promoting proactive and comprehensive risk
management, which provided strong support to the stable and vigorous
operation of the Bank. The Board of Directors of the Bank and its
subordinate Risk Committee, the Senior Management ,Credit Management
Committee, Operational risk Management Committee and Assets &
Liabilities Management Committee and other specialized management
committees, the Risk Management Department, the Internal Audit
Department and the Compliance Department constitute the main
organizational structure for risk management of the Bank, and directly
manage all kinds of risks through vertical management.

l. Credit Risks

Credit risks refer to the risks related to the losses incurred due to the
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default of debtors or counterparties. They are among the major risks
encountered in a bank’s operations. The Bank has constructed a scientific
and sophisticated credit risk management system to guide and regulate
credit business, so as to achieve comprehensive, unified, timely and
effective supervision on and control over credit risks.

During 2011, in active response to the changes in the macroeconomic
situation, the Bank implemented stable and vigorous credit policies with
focus on expanding the low-risk credit services for high-quality
enterprises.

During the same year, the Bank adopted a more prudential credit strategy
and made appropriate adjustment for credit portfolio, with its year-end
credit assets, including issued loans, advances, totaled to RMB
735,498,000, an decrease of 24.07% over the end of 2010. This is mainly
due to the Bank’s active efforts in strictly controlling clients’ credit quality,
selectively extend loan facility in compliance with credit tightening

strategy of the nation.

Quality of credit assets

During 2011, the Bank mainly issued its loans to domestic large-scale
enterprises with stable and vigorous operations as well as corporate clients
with adequate guarantees and sound corporate backgrounds. After the
previous mortgage assets have been transferred and all the loans issued to
small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) have been repaid. All the

loans of the Bank have been issued to large-scale enterprises.
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The Bank classified its credit assets into five levels in accordance with the
Guidance on Classification of Loan Risks promulgated by China Banking
Regulatory Commission and with consideration of its internal
management requirements. In 2011, all the credit assets were in normal
category according to this five-level classification and there were no bad
loans. This is mainly because both the existing loans and the newly added
loans during the year were all high-quality large corporate loans.

The Bank applies individual evaluation to the loans and advances which
show indications of asset impairment or satisfy the single major loan
standard, and accrues impairment reserves in a case-by-case manner. In
terms of the loans and advances which have no asset impairment upon
individual evaluation and those that are not covered in the scope of the
above-mentioned individual evaluation, the combined evaluation method
Is applied to accrue impairment reserves. According to evaluation, as of
December 31, 2011, the total credit assets of the Bank were RMB
735,498,000 ,no NPL. The credit assets impairment reserves accrued by
the Bank through individual evaluation method were zero and through
combined evaluation method were RMB 7,355,000; pursuant to the
relevant regulatory requirements, the Bank actually accrued general risk
reserves of RMB 12,239,000 with the cumulative balance reaching RMB
40,672,000. The balance of the reserves accrued by the Bank satisfies the

relevant regulatory requirements.

Concentration risk

The Bank strictly follows the requirements of the regulatory authority to
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prudently manage the degree of loan concentration. By the end of 2011,
the ratio of loans issued to the single largest borrower by the Bank was
7.78% and the ratio of loans issued to related parties was zero, both in

compliance to the relevant regulatory requirements.

Risks in securities investment

As of December 31, 2011, all the investments of the Bank were in trading
financial assets, with the balance of RMB 1,755,557,000. In terms of
Investment structure, the domestic investment of the Bank mainly
involved Chinese government bonds, PBOC bills and policy bank bonds.
The corporate bonds in which we invested were also medium-term notes
maintaining AAA credit rating with China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited. Therefore the credit risks of the

investments of the Bank are relatively low.

I1. Market Risk Management

Market risks refer to the risks related to losses of on-balance sheet
activities and off-balance sheet activities of a bank due to adverse changes
in market prices. The market risks of a bank mainly include interest rate
risk and foreign exchange risk.

In order to ensure effective implementation of market risk management,
the Bank has organically integrated the identification, measuring,
monitoring and control of market risks with the overall strategic planning,
business decision making, financial budgeting and other operation and

management activities of the entire Bank. The Bank has set up related
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rules and management procedures in accordance with global market risk
management practices so as to ensure management of market risks in
respect of legal entities. To this end, the Bank has appointed market risk
managers to monitor whether its market risk management complies with
the relevant rules and management procedures.

With consideration of its major trading business (bond investments —
government bonds, central bank notes, policy financial bonds and
corporate bonds) in 2011, the Bank applied the following major market
risk management methods: limits management (including trading limits,
risk limits and stop-loss limits), comparison of daily market value of
bonds, and market risk capital management. The Bank utilized, among
others, the FLOW System (risk system) of the Group to achieve excess
management. In case an excess appears, the relevant department must
explain the reason for excess and measures to be adopted, and make
responses through appropriately authorized procedures.

Market risk managers are responsible for market risk monitoring and
control, and will report to the Risk Committee and Assets & Liability
Management Committee on a regular basis. The Bank has established and
improved the market risk limits management system and has standardized
the policies, procedures and report mechanisms with respect to market risk
management. The Internal Auditing Department carries out regular audits
for market risk management to ensure effective operation of the risk
management system. The market risk management of the Bank is

sufficient and effective.
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I11. Operational Risks

Operational risk refers to the risk of financial or other loss, or potential
damage to a bank’s reputation, resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people, resources, systems, or from external events (e.g., fraud,
legal and compliance risks, damage to physical assets).

Following the regulatory requirements, the bank has established an
operational risk management framework that is appropriate for its scale,
product lines and complexity of activities so as to effectively identify,
assess, monitor and control/mitigate operational risks.

The Bank has established its Operational Risk management strategy and
overall policies, which are consistent with the bank’s strategic target,
approved by the Board. The senior management as well as the Operational
Risk Committee are responsible for the implementation of the policies.
The operational risk management framework helps establish the
operational risk standards applicable to the entire Bank. Under this
framework, the Operational Risk Committee, the Senior Management and
chiefs of respective departments jointly monitor and manage the
operational risks of the Bank to reduce operational risk incidents. The
bank identifies, collects and reports operational risk incidents to share
Important information, identify the root causes of problems, take risk relief
actions, and meet both the management and the regulatory requirements.
Through monthly operational risk meetings and operational risk reporting,
Senior Management understands the bank’s material operational risks and
internal controls so as to take necessary actions to effectively control and

mitigate the risks.
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IV. Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risks refer to the risks related to the losses or bankruptcy of a
commercial bank due to its incapability of providing financing to decrease
liabilities and/or increase assets. The Bank has established the liquidity
risk management framework aiming to identify the source and to quantify
the amount of liquidity and contingent cashflows. The framework would
also quantify the additional liquidity required in stressed scenario and
assess the funding amount raised from secured and unsecured financing.
The Assets & Liability Committee (“ALCO”), the Finance and
Accounting Department, the Trading Department and the Corporate
Treasury Department work together to carry out effective liquidity
management to promptly identify and control short term as well as
medium and long term liquidity risk so as to allow the Bank to operate
with optimized liquidity. Effective liquidity management would also
control lending cost and drive up the Bank’s investment returns, and
ensuring that the capital of the Bank is able to meet the demands related to
daily operations.

The Trading Department collects funding requests of each business unit
and the corresponding terms every day to estimate the surpluses or
shortage of funding and execute appropriate funding transactions

including borrowing in the interbank money market. The Finance and
Accounting Department is responsible for calculating the liquidity ratio of
the previous working day on a daily basis to ensure the compliance of the
liquidity requirements under the “Regulations on the Administration of

Foreign-funded Banks of the People’s Republic of China”.
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The Bank has adopted the contingent funding plan (including the liquidity
stressed test), and submitted to ALCO for review on a monthly basis. The
purpose of liquidity stressed test is to ensure that the Bank is able to
maintain normal business operation for one year in the context of long-

term credit/liquidity crunch in the market.

In conclusion, the Bank has set up a risk management system suitable for
the nature, scope and sophistication of its business and is able to

effectively monitor and control risks.
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Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited (MSBIC)
Internal Audit Annual Work Report for 2011

Internal Audit prepares and submits its Internal Audit Annual Work

Report for 2011 in accordance with CBRC guidelines. The audit status and

accomplishments of Internal Audit for 2011 are as follows:

1. Internal Audit reported to the MSBIC Audit Committee in every

quarter of 2011 to update the Audit Committee on the overall control

environment of MSBIC, audit plan status, high risk audit findings and any

significant matters or disagreements, of which there were none.

2.  Internal Audit completed the following audits in 2011 according to

the approved audit plan:

e Liquidity Risk Management
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e Beijing Branch

e Related Party Transactions

e Anti-Money Laundering

e Emergency Response & Precautionary Measures (BCP)

e Trading and Market Risk Management

The list of audits and a summary of their findings are provided in

the Appendix to this report.

3. There was no unplanned review added to the audit plan for 2011.

4.  The Audit Committee approved the 2012 internal audit plan in

January 2012, with audit scope covering General IT Controls and

Outsourcing Management, Regulatory Reporting, Anti-Money Laundering,

Related Party Transactions, Trading and Market Risk Management, and

Emergency Response & Precautionary Measures (BCP).

Appendix: 2011 Audits and Findings

Audit

Rating

Findings and Risks

Liquidity Risk Needs
Management Improvement

Internal Audit presented one self-identified High risk and one Moderate risk
findings. The High finding is related to the firm’s Contingency Funding Policy -
MSBIC has not maintaining a positive Contingent Funding Plan (CFP) level at all
times over a one-year horizon, as required by the firm’s liquidity management
policy, which could expose the Bank to a liquidity crunch in a stressful market and
could bear regulatory consequence. The Moderate finding relates to gaps in the
documentation of the liquidity surviving horizon, stress-test results submission and
liquidity crisis drills, as required by the Liquidity Risk Management Guideline
issued by the China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC) in 2009. An open
action related to the High risk finding is expected to be closed by end of March,
2012.
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Beijing Branch | Satisfactory | CBRC requires an audit of the branch at least once every two year. This audit was
based on a review and consolidation of findings from six separate audits of the
Bank in 2010 that covered the main activities and support functions at the Beijing
Branch. The six audits in 2010 were rated Satisfactory and their findings had been
presented in our Annual Work Report for 2010. The six audits were Operational
Risk Management; Lending and Loans Operations; Anti-Money Laundering;
Related Party Transactions; Emergency Response and Precautionary Measures; and
Trading and Market Risk Management.

Related Party Satisfactory | Internal Audit identified one Moderate risk finding related to late submission of

Transaction related-party disclosures by two directors who were appointed during the past year.

Anti-Money Satisfactory Internal Audit identified one Moderate risk finding related to Finance not sending

Laundering details of vendor payments to Compliance for the US Office of Foreign Assets
Control (OFAC) scanning for four months.

Emergency Satisfactory | Internal Audit identified one Moderate and one Low risk findings. The Moderate

Response & risk finding identified that approval for the use of company chop has not been

Precautionary documented and the Low risk finding relates to inconsistent information presented

Measures (BCP) in the business continuity plan (BCP) documentation.

Trading and Satisfactory | Internal Audit identified five Moderate risk findings. These related to the lack of an

Market Risk appropriate booking model to capture risk sensitivity correctly for certain floating-

Management rate bonds that are convertible to fixed-rate bonds; the head of fixed-income trading

not attending the Assets & Liabilities Committee (ALCO) meetings, as required by
the bank’s ALCO charter; inconsistent sign-off practice for the S&T Operations’
task list; the lack of a written procedure for new trading account setups; and a
deficiency in the onshore trading book access entitlements review procedure.

Note: Internal Audit tracks the remediation actions of all High risk findings quarterly and review the
remediation of Moderate and Low risks findings in the next audit.
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37,247,503.00

5,668,897,262.89 4,756,831,070.73
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FRVAHR S AR o N S 00t et A2 D R AR RSB AR Y, HART A
CUEEaE

Prigpi

PTG B B A 458 24 391 P A5 BRI S2E P 4500

TR

BT H X T 2 YA LU )T R 2 S A B A ot (B ), LA SRBVE R e v 5
RIFIYI N AT 2 (BRI ) (R BT A B < it o
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4. FENTFBURM S o Th - 48
Prahi - &k

G P B R A Py 1 B L

XA B L GG H AR S P B 2 T 22, DA SR A B A o
B2 IR vl LIRS 2 SE TR RE At 0 150 1 AR T A9 {55 T R R it 2 TR PR 22 80 74 (R
I PEZES, SR B D T 001 55 1Al DA 32 S P 4 L 5% 7 B SiE P 45 B A7 o

UL AT T P2 SR AP BL. R T ATHCHIAT R P57, AT
L 4 PG PTG 52 2 0 BT A0 B, 0 A 10 4 745
.

X RE S 45 LR E B AT AT 5 AR, AR AT RESRAG F ORI T IR 5 ORI
ARSI AR AN BETAFRUN IR, B . (328 SE TSR 98 7

PR H, T PR B M RE P AR o, AR BGARE , $4 BESTY I R A
R B A A R AT a) () 3 P BT

B 5 A AT ZR A s BT A ALl O AZ 2 AN TGUR 5 1 24 31 4 B 34 4 P 4 B v
AHABER AW T BT B ad 4t A S I PT A BN A 498 9 H Bl 2 v A\ 2 1 2t o

OB, 6 AE BT A BB (KT A (AT R, WUERARSKRAR T BETCVAIRAT 2 (1)
ISR T A A0 AR 3 SE AR B8 7 R 2, U9 a3 S PS8 8 7 (R Ik T 8. #EAR
A HEIRAF AL 08 1) N AN BLFIT AN, S ) 80 LA ]

DIt BRI

AT LA A S RVE BN, HE B DA sl S A 5™ . i B St [ I AT I, A
BAT ZIIPTAFBL B e = WIS B 0 T AIRAR 5 (R 387 i

AT AT 4 S S T AR B A A P AR B A TRV BOR], - ELI A T A B 98 7 L3k
S PSR Dt 5 (R BSCAE A 0 1 06 [ A B 2 A e 1) e A5 AT 5 B 2 X AN Rl R 44
BlEAAE, ABAEARNREE— BAT L EVE I8 SE P BB K o [ AR SUITRI A 3 2 (i 4l
A0 AR P AT 8 S ST P AR B W 7 A AR ot el RN A B 7 L IR B o, ARHRAT I
S PIT ARt 7 3t S P A5 A G ot AR J PR3 B3I o
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4 EESHBGMEAGL - 4
LRI 2 e

ST AZ G AEAT AR A A IR SR AZ 5 e 26 I RIS 4 5

TRt H L, AhMBE AR H R % H BN S i KA T, PR R
HE AN B {7 57 SR H RIS AR AN R = A2 A0 S 228, Bvk AN et .

LA S ReA T (R A AR BT PRI H A5 LAAS 5 e 24 I BTV S 7 S50 AR A I AR o7 10 it
e DI e E RSN TARS MAYEITH . R SRt B2 H RIS, s
RIC IR AL T S8 Js I AL T AR 2280, A4 A e E AL B (IR A s A B, T A
ERIEAEE

HIL5

SE ERERS T 5 T T B OGR4 RS AR A S5 S R B AL B . Ml AN B DAAMIR S
(RSN = iR

IIRITTER BTN IR 25 M 55

2075 LD (AL <e 2 AR AL BT 0T A (19 25N U0 TR 42 L RIR A ARG B8 7 A B B4 2 . 9146
FAR TR A G s M TS b A A N A B

ZAEHTAK

ARATAE ALV ST, BARITIOL S 1R A N b5t &, ABATHUIEZAT A HE
o, Wi, &L M LS HHRI SRR O P B R ST L 55 o XU 2=
FENEAH, AT RO R T 2L, ZATVURA AR T B T ik

5. IS BORIERE b TR R BRSO A T PR B S BB BRI AN E [ 3%

AHATAEIZIINRE 4 Prifd it BeRE R, B8 Wm s WERNAFEE, AT
SO CVAMERG vE R AR I H A O (e AT A Al T AR B XL il AR B
T AT E R LWl , I &AL S R Z I Bl AT . SERRA &S
a5 ARAT G THAAE ST

AHRATRITIA S Ah o AE A Fr a2 e (ARl BB T e R AL, i A AU

Wi A2 B =4 0T, FLSE M B /e AR B = ) DU A s RSS2 B =4 31 SR i AR YT i),
Wi 40 A B 4 SRR R T 1) 3 A A
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5. BRI R E A WA S vl v IR T R SRR R BRI AN e R R - 4k
ST RS I T ST A 55

e LRI LT

APATHEA TR i il TR, Gl SRl E AR e H R e i . AMRAT
AR VA SRR M DU i A R 5 . AR T/ 01 QB 5 AL S 06 T4 AR« T3¢
B FRRAN RN ST BT AN o IX LA SC I R B i IAR A 2 0 g HL W 2 se (i 2B 3
M o

WAGCLE o L AN

BRAE 2 AR A € I VSR A, ANRA T T 0E 7 B AR DUk L & BEAT YA HE 25 (R DY
filio X4 LA DER K BB v AR A DD IO DT AL 15, ARAT X AL A 2 A5 A7 AR T
THARRIL Bt > B G BEAT I, DURA e o 15 T BV SRR ME AT o A ZE IR R M RS
B R R W2 S A SN B SOAPIRGUA A T ANMI R ZZ A (1, AR AN
FEIEFN), BUHEL T AT RE S B A N DRI ) ) [ K Bt 7 S BPIR DU AMAR L S . X RA
FHIE AR A5 P RIS A L M 2 WLl AP UE 91 PR DYk 2 5 B 7, ASHRAT R T LS ABA B 7™ 1) g B 45
RZRAT DI EAZ ST B AR RGBT FEN . ASHRAT 23 58 J1 507 B0 AR I (1 e AU
IS T AT A T B 8 Y R R A , DABRAD Al VT ST IR AR5 R AN S B ST B R D2
[ R 22 57 o

I

APATEIE R 2 E W st A7 28 5 He e 28 (MR 55 Ab BRI H SEAFAE 32 AN E 1
P83 T H 2 15 BENS AR AT 81 Sl ZEEUR EE PG k. W X LR 55 S 000 1 B A E 45
RIF B AN ST AL 22, A2 SR on G 80\ i U1 1) 10 224 019 43 50 M 328 4 T 435
INSGES - AU

AP 1B R DL

B AE PG AL T KA, AR BUE RS, 1% Ul B8 7 Bl £ i S g Ta) A
PR, AEARAT AT BEAT A8 (K N AN T A3 ORI 7 BRI BRE N, ARAT BT AT A AT 1Y
AR 75 A DA G RE T A B B 77 o X T S B A F KR IR TR T 2R R N 4 B T 45401
LRI TR) AT B 0 ARG FH OB, BARSE IS DA PR3 SE BT A5 A  7 R 97 Aot 1Y) < 0
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6. BECY Y

Prgpi
MR 2007 4 3 HmiAi i) PR N ESERE ANV ITARBIEY (BAF SRR B VT BIE"), A
17 H 2008 4 1 7 1 FHERFZMOF AV IS BUE AT SO IAUE AP TS Bl iE (A

TR IR ANV T A3 3 IE S PRAAAS BT AT 89%5) (W P[2008]10 5) M2 (s 48 S AL
ANV AR BRSO BT AT INED (HBi[2008]28 5)MRLE , AHATH SHASAT ST
SOCE L IR VRS ORI TS BUL U BN

R % [2007]139 5 ([ 45 Bt & TSt A e A Bt Y U BN BOR s Ay, A% FR B
A ATBUE R H A AT BEZ R ) SO =2 AL B AR BSR4 AR J st 2 -
42008 4F 1 H 1 Hiltl, JR =2 RBCRREEBURM A, EFBiE1T )5 5 tFEN B DI 21
ERE, Hod 2SR 15%FIZR M4, 2008 4E1% 18%Fi R AT, 2009 44 20%F1
FKHAT, 2010 E% 22%Bi R PAT, 2011 4% 24% B RAT, 2012 TE% 25%FBERAT . ARAT
BRI ST IR T 252 Bk i B A, 2011 FE R (I TR BIBIZE N 24%(2010 4E ) : 22%).
ABATACRE AT A ZEZ Fli P BB .

BN
AATENBIBLAR T 5%,
HAbBLIR

M CHESSBeoc 48— WANGEARNE AT A NI i et B 20 2 BEan i BE o g (B &
[2010]35 “5) AL (55Xt BBt A VAL HOl T 47 it BRI 2l BRIy 5% e AL AT ) (B
[2010]103 “5) A KE, AHRATHEE 2010 4 12 H 1 HZ G KA S ENLBL, 44
BB 7Y 3%BH A T Y BRI 0 2 B o

MRS /2011110 5 3CHEE, AMRATERIEEAT A 2011 £F 1 H 1 HEILSERRsiaan b BB
Y] 29225 0 I
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7.

AF T JARAT ZK I
FERE EAIEL
AR MIT AR MIT
A JARAT VL e A% 4 481,315,453.90  32,675,197.96
A7 LR AT 1 TE A 2 47,390,624.27 232,175,491.46

528,706,078.17  264,850,689.42

AEHMERS b BN RARAT A B 207 AR 4R % (2007)134 5] (N BRARIT L T4
T ANLAT S S PIE SN, M 2007 425 F 15 Hill, LR sNEA7F 3k AE % R 58—
Bl 5%, AT AN AT HAERS S8 H RS A7 R H RBUT 5%ZA7 . ATAFaRtE#
EAVRE . ARYE A O RRAT R, 2011 4F 12 H 31 HA1 2010 4 12 A 31 H AR M7
HER AT L4537 4 19.0%F1 16.5%, A [ b 25 47 5 ME 2% AR 4 ) R 8- A7 3R H &
BN TS

A7 ANV K I
FERE FEHIEL
AR AR Mt
A7 15 I TR 307,891,873.44 5,354,311.69
reane=vANEINI4 63,189,641.25 222,894,012.84
&1t 371,081,514.69 228,248,324.53
Wil AFRCRNERURHES - A PR 405,200.00
I QIEAREE] 370,676,314.69 228,248,324.53
P %4
AR FEHIEL
AR NG
iy e ANIGINI4 2,196,956,700.00  666,227,000.00
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\|

10. A HMERivirE

77

Horb: BUNBTF JORAT 2R
SNl Tes
NEilves

it

AL T

VNCMI N VNCMI N

377,868,776.00  211,599,030.00
1,142,680,975.00 2,219,114,360.00
235,007,650.00 99,050,000.00

1,755,557,401.00 2,529,763,390.00

AGER, AT T2 [0 <l 53 7 K (BT 20) 53 A8 2 P < Rl g 7= T i o N IR
1,130,300,000 JG(2010 4F: AR 1,220,000,000 JG)o %52 WY I S 40 0 s AR 3G ES 1

A H A2

11, NICRE
(R IHLIIEN

TR
A AL
AR %

FEARRH

() a7

VLSS B,
- AFJBCRAT S R0
- PRI
- RIBGEH AN
- A o kRt

At

82

EARE FYIEK
VNIV VNIV

25013,920.47  17,287,586.56
226,040,893.56  93,807,794.60
(217,882,748.70)  (86,081,460.69)

33,172,065.33 25,013,920.47

EARM Y
AR AR

645,753.39 71,288.86
3,668,166.40 1,462,982.93
8,630,547.00 4,551,751.84

20,227,598.54 18,927,896.84

33,172,065.33 25,013,920.47
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12, RICGEHRF K

(D42 AN FIA N BB R -

ERE SERIER
ANRMIT ANRMIT
AP R R HK 735,498,496.00 968,681,000.00
&t 735,498,496.00 968,681,000.00
Mh: DI R HER 7,354,984.96 -
WK T A B 728,143,511.04 968,681,000.00
(2)42AT Mo AT 1 Dl i 9 s A =
Nl EARE LE A5 (%) SEEL L 51 (%)
ANR Mt AR Mt
3D - - 100,000,000.00 10.32
ek F T 185,498,496.00 25.22 298,681,000.00 30.83
KA 200,000,000.00 27.19 200,000,000.00 20.65
F S A2 P R 100,000,000.00 13.60 100,000,000.00 10.32
Ry MR, B, RS - - 100,000,000.00 10.32
N4 250,000,000.00 33.99 170,000,000.00 17.56
&1t 735,498,496.00 100.00 968,681,000.00 100.00
Tl DU RME 7,354,984.96 -
QIEARIE] 728,143,511.04 968,681,000.00
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12, RIS - 4t

() FL AR NI o3 A 5 BN

H X AT

e JemX
HrX
HAIX

it
W B

T i fEL

FARE
VNN

EL11 (%)

YA

VNN

EEA11(%)

(@ AR AR A A UL

fRsER
HRGEK

W SRR AE

QIR

644,513,500.00 87.63 868,681,000.00 89.68
90,984,996.00 12.37 - -
- - 100,000,000.00 10.32
735,498,496.00 100.00 968,681,000.00 100.00
WURHES 7,354,984.96 -
728,143,511.04 968,681,000.00
K SEYHL
1AELAH 1L 1554
(F14E) 54 E &il (T 14F) (£ 5%) &it
NN NN NN PN ARG PN PN
300,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 700,000,000.00
50,000,000.00 - 50,000,000.00 70,000,000.00 - 70,000,000.00
185,498,496.00 185,498,496.00 198,681,000.00 198,681,000.00
185,498,496.00 185,498,496.00 198,681,000.00 198,681,000.00
535,498,496.00 200,000,000.00 735,498,496.00 768,681,000.00 200,000,000.00 968,681,000.00
7,354,984.96
728,143,511.04 968,681,000.00
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13, BEM
J5 )2 )
NG
FEH N S E 19,488,787.00
KA SO EAR S (636,173.00)
FERN SOME 18,852,614.00
ABATIPL VL =300 b R A3, R A A EAZ S, A R E & DS T 5
W, JFEHRr e B . b A ORI AT AT 25 A B R R . AR AT I B e
AR FHEHH
14.  [HE %~
ET A it
AR Mt AR Mt AR MTT
JR
FEHIEL 251,665.98 14,806,420.22 15,058,086.20
ALERE N - 1,594,356.63 1,594,356.63
AN E 251,665.98 618,411.54 870,077.52
TEAREL - 15,782,365.31 15,782,365.31
2HrH
TFEHIEL 162,324.57 6,937,438.00 7,099,762.57
AT 37,749.90 2,942,632.53 2,980,382.43
AN E 200,074.47 579,363.02 779,437.49
TEAREL - 9,300,707.51 9,300,707.51
T
TFEHIEL 89,341.41 7,868,982.22 7,958,323.63
TEAREL - 6,481,657.80 6,481,657.80
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15.

16.

cTl
NS

=
_|.T..

1)

RN
8y

e

Js e

T
ANEFBT
FAREL

BT

I
AR
FEARE

i

FAIEK
FEARE

KSR S5 89 B Tt
B WA BUE S 20 2 57
ATk B R A S A S
AN T 3%

#ik

Bem v s st & SUAE AL B)

T IRALIE %

#ik

38 A FITASAE BE 7 R 3 SEE B 43 B 97 fot

F8 VA 73S 3 SiE P A5 3 7 A3t S I A B 410

ARG
9,086,575.55
2,150,691.10
11,237,266.65
3,889,882.23
1,889,004.80
5,778,887.03
5,196,693.32
5,458,379.62
AR I o 40 T A3 B
AR FHIH AR FHIH
PNEMIIVH PNEWI M PNEMIIVH PNEWI IV
2,913,822.30 1,230,340.16 728,455.58 295,281.64
2,889,443.47 1,944,941.06 722,360.87 486,235.27
4,940,989.70 47,396,560.00 1,235,247.43 11,375,174.40
3,150,450.00 3,311,350.00 787,612.50 794,724.00
13,894,705.47 53,883,191.22 3,473,676.38 12,951,415.31
I BT I 1 7 S 3 F0E T Bl 91 £5%
NP ARG NP ARG
18,852,614.00 19,488,787.00 4,713,153.50 4,872,196.75
21,504,267.00 16,349,080.00 5,376,066.75 3,923,779.20
40,356,881.00 35,837,867.00 10,089,220.25 8,795,975.95
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16.

17.

B IE FT A3 B B 7RI SE TSR A T - &

(2)  AHUTAI IS G P AR S P S 0 G T A B BT T TR, DA R
FE PRI 7 1) 356 S8 P 1500 0% 7= A3 4.8 P #9830 47 £
FERE FEHIEL
AR Mt AR Mt
16 JIE AR % 3,473,676.38  12,951,415.31
16 JiE P A9R 5 45 (10,089,220.25)  (8,795,975.95)
I (6,615,543.87)  4,155,439.36
()  HIIANLATSRIIEM 2008 451 H 1 HsLiti. A4 E % [2007]39 5 (45 Bk 5L
ANV BT A5 R A BB A ), A% R s B . AT B0 R B 4T B0
T ) SCAE IR g =32 ANV T A B B IBUR, #% DL R mksitiid ). H 2008 41 H
1 HilZ, JR Z= 2 EBCRA B BRI AN, (FBEIEAT )G 5 N B 27k e Bl
Horby 2 A TABL 15%FI R Ak, 2008 3% 18% i EFHh AT, 2009 4F4% 20%Hi
FPAT, 2010 F4% 22%FLRMAT, 2011 F4% 24%FRMAT, 2012 FF4% 25%Fi K,
1T AARAT R JE T 252 FiR b i BRIy, 2011 SR T8 BL R N 24%
(2010 %: 22%). AHATALR T AEZ FIR I B BUR .
LAt %% =
FERE FEHIEL
AR Mt AR Mt
A7 AR IE S 1,208,576.67 1,024,953.61
THAT Ik 898,716.02 679,777.65
KRR FH (D) 907,117.00 4,566,236.30
IS B 4,112,369.97  26,242,976.84
T K I B~ Bl K (2) 17,589,187.79 4,526,814.13
HoAth 236,673.79 206,744.47
&t 24,952,641.24  37,247,503.00
W NIRRT JRAEE £ (60,100.00) -
ViK1 24,892,541.24  37,247,503.00

87 -28 -



JEERR A [ BT (P ) A R 7
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

17.

18.

19.

HAb G- -
(D)Kot 9

RN [ 5 8 = e 4

Js e
T
ANEFBT
AAFEEG
AL

FARKL
R
R
AT
ARAEALE
FARE
Ei
FAIEK
FEARE

AT

12,614,896.33
327,211.73
(39,852.06)
(48,339.52)

12,853,916.48

8,048,660.03
3,046,478.97
(48,339.52)

11,946,799.48

4,566,236.30

907,117.00

()N AT P B AR AR T N B 0 3 R 58 LIS B ARG S H .

7 M Al < R LA A TS0 3

B RNLAT 3K

VAN &

PRAEL A [FME
PRABZER D

#it

88

AR FHIEL
ARG ARG
476,982,076.68  173,175,536.74
AR FYIEL
ARG ARG
30,000,000.00  220,000,000.00
135,469,350.00  98,678,230.00
165,469,350.00  318,678,230.00
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20, SEHI B BE K

FEHLTH I A A 8 =K
ERE SERIEL
AR T AR T
57 1,080,300,000.00 1,212,000,000.00
21, WRRCAERK
R EYIEL
AR Mt AR Mt
AR
NG9S 71,137,152.01 68,445,698.62
N 106,031.63 1,718,236.45
& HAAF K
NCIE-9S 2,523,983,496.85 1,709,880,001.28
MNE S 4,903,090.80 5,725,558.16
& 2,600,129,771.29 1,785,769,494.51
22, UASTHR T M
FEYIEL ALETHR A AT SEARBL
ARMe ARt ARMe ARMe
T, Kb FMGAIRM 3,919,401.58 28,006,701.58  (28,005,328.46) 3,920,774.70
BUTAEAZE (1) 822,855.03 2,213,104.59 (1,276,845.29) 1,759,114.33
FEOS ORI - 1,416,557.49 (1,361,448.30) 55,109.19
s ARG - 635,810.00 (635,810.00)
I RR 57 B ok R 4 T I AMEE 9,845.50 270,187.31 (280,032.81)
&t 4,752,102.11 32,542,360.97  (31,559,464.86)  5,734,998.22

(1) KIPk% 4

BRAZHE SN R BUR HLAA B 7 I ER AL S RBEAR R AL, ARBATIR N 2 T or T 518K/
BHRAH SR B e 2 vt Rl o AARATH IR 02 1 H AR T 1K) 8% 2% Fe R 52 i J i A AH
AT BRI o A5 WA A £ B IR AR Bl B ) SLS2AF, KRS S RI Bl 4T
BEEH LA TR AEAMIA R 5 4FE R PR, RAFEEY 20% H.2 100%.

AT T2 TR HO_ESB KPR 55 v Rl 2 ¥ 52 o A5 AT R SR A, BOE 3 ot
S5 IR LA S A SR 24 3 IR 55 FEAS L 25 1 5% B AS 49 45 FH Fvt S A AR o
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22.

NATHAT I - 2k

(1) BRI - KIS S - 4

(a) B ABERH, RESEIEAL PR A A SRR T

ek
e TR K
W52 % R

Ly Lol
B
BRI

AR I
3.30% 3.75%
7.00% 7.00%
3.30% 2.75%

AR AE I

1 2000 4-2003 A5k

(b) THEANKSS A BB (R e 32 an vl B I

IR S5 A
BEE 32 355 AR 2

it

(©) FhABEAHL T I 5 5 o ) S e T

ARTEANTE B B0E 32 2 X 55 B

CEA BB A BOE 32 2 55 I ILE -

St
I

AR NS 37
ARG ARG
740,927.38 877,062.00
24,680.56 -
765,607.94 877,062.00
AL FAIE
ARG ARG
1,759,114.30 822,855.03
1,759,114.30 822,855.03
1,759,114.30 822,855.03
1,759,114.30 822,855.03
-31 -
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22.

NATHAT I - 2k

() KRS e - &

(d) HIIBOE 52 ol L5 I ILEAZ B b -

T
IR S5 A
AR
UECETES

CL AT A A

FARE

AL T AR
RN
NEET)
FoAt

it

EAREL SEATTER
AR AR
822,855.03 -
740,927.38 877,062.00
24,680.56 -
346,844.46 -
(176,193.13) (54,206.97)
1,759,114.30 822,855.03
EREL FEAIEL
ARG ARG
5,400,297.23 7,714,696.74
5,580,399.96 4,243,640.84
36,320.94 60,677.35
129,934.56 7,365.46
11,146,952.69  12,026,380.39
-32 -
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24, NATRIR
(NI AR

FHIRH
AL
AR

FARRM

QAR

A A
- W AE K
- [l e A < R LA A7 0
- AT
- S [P < R K
=it

25, A

AENPRUESE:
T H]

o FE W B

FAt NEATER (1)

it

(1) HABRNALEK

W B8 AR
A SRIEA LR A QIR I
FoAt

#rit

92

EAR
NENI

7,204,459.50

148,618,288.80
(138,853,069.70)

TR
ARG
848,030.20
33,918,672.51

(27,562,243.21)

16,969,678.60  7,204,459.50
FAK FHIEL
ARG ARG
9,784,665.71 2,534,976.83
4,325,709.82 1,201,061.94
2,292,438.96 844,422.96
566,864.11 2,623,997.77
16,969,678.60 7,204,459.50
FAREL FHIEL
ARG ARG
301,742.88 301,742.88
2,351,586.79  2,366,513.90
1,556,909.61 135,342.02
16,939,974.89  10,394,926.23

21,150,214.17

13,198,525.03

FEARM FHIH
NIV NIV
11,466,965.76 4,626,684.45
3,180,400.44 3,442,064.44
2,292,608.69 2,326,177.34
16,939,974.89 10,394,926.23
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26.

27.

28.

29.

SHCTEA

AREATEM AN AR T 1,000,000,000.00 76, # % 2011 4F 12 A 31 HE 23467, #
BT R BB A BENE DL

JEEAR A FE B RAT A BR 22 7]

NSb Y5 PNV NRELII/ SR EE 26 5

ERBL VI
VEME TR H s Bl e ANRTIT
%
AR 67% 666,000,000.00
HEm 33% 334,000,000.00

1,000,000,000.00

THAEERLEG 72 5 (2007)FITEABZREG 11 S50 %R .

RN

IR
AT

TR RAN

=

A N/NA

BOE R an R A S EAl
SUBEE TR AT

it

AR

IR
A

SRR

VRIS Py BRAT UG DR R a5 g, I HE 7405 4(2002)

EREL EAIEL
NEN N NEN N
39,503,162.77  33,679,202.65
5,463,246.83 5,823,960.12
44,966,409.60  39,503,162.77
EREL AL
ARG ARG
346,844.46 -
(86,711.10) ;
260,133.36 -
TEAREL EATTER
NGV AR
21,077,745.89 8,403,791.24

12,239,162.02

12,673,954.65

33,316,907.91

21,077,745.89

93
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30.

31.

K43 B A3
FERE WL
NS AR Mt

SERIA 3 T A1 169,445,433.79  129,703,747.39
ARAEJE R 54,632,468.28  58239.601.17
FEREL R AR (5,463,246.83)  (5,823,960.12)
FER— M R HE A (2) (12,239,162.02)  (12,673,954.65)
AR AR A 206,375,493.22  169,445,433.79
(OFEW R AR

IRAEARAT FHH P, AT A 2007 FITH0T% 10%8 5 FRETHEE R AR, HEREF
S HIF BT R BC S H N 1k

(2) B i s v 25

RIEARATERH I, AT H 2007 ST UATF AR R B 752 1% 50— B
i, HEEHSHFEBUAXOIHE AL,

ZAIISREDIVPN
AR ETH AE B
ANRTJT ANRTJT
iFIJ ,%\LI&)\
AF TR RN I 1,331,403.14 2,366,095.36
AT SR AT I 16,365,473.37 1,710,776.71
R P4 41,253,535.12 2,864,229.79
AT oM ARl e 127,145,473.71 61,410,790.82
- RS R R 39,945,008.22  22,030,951.92
et - 3,424.950.00
N 226,040,893.56 93,807,794.60
) B3 H

- B S LR 7 1k
BN
S I i 7 2
AR

ANt

AN

%

7,358,118.23
14,349,153.10
42,730,286.45
84,180,731.02

1,201,071.01
5,216,650.50
22,093,109.92
5,407,841.08

148,618,288.80

33,918,672.51

77,422,604.76

59,889,122.09
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32, TR RSN

T AN
-LALHEK
SR HE B
-EH N
-G SR TS
ARERMY 55 T 2L
kLSRN LN
AR TN
-FoAt

/N

T4 A4
i san
R T
A TR Y

it

TELY AN BTl

95

RSCES
ARG

1,850,000.00
8,043,741.52
79,479,248.09
23,783.82
224,699.43
97,148.96
67,108.33

LSV
AT

1,640,000.00
29,218,787.03
66,227,089.09
34,907.80
760.50
1,930,628.65

99,697.45

89,785,730.15

99,151,870.52

1,687,034.57 6,870,000.00
1,187,507.18 46,265.99
1,962,110.85 721,041.17
4,836,652.60 7,637,307.16

84,949,077.55

91,514,563.36
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33, BHWE/ERR)

AL oy Mk e Rl B I 2/ (151 2K)

34, N AMHMEARSI R/ (HR)

7 R A i
P b

it

35, At SN

PBEE: by ™ A LR

36. BB N

B
BN

#rit

VIS LAE SR
ARG ARG
(28,154,695.62)  9,635,143.22
AN TR LRI
ARG ARG

42,455,570.30

(636,173.00)

(22,861,225.75)

1,069,928.00

41,819,397.30

(21,791,297.75)

ASE R NEES57
ARG ARG
1,206,971.52 1,206,971.52

A R NEESS7
ARG ARG

12,848,086.25
1,726,072.36

10,717,871.22
180,105.93

14,574,158.61

10,897,977.15

96
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37.

38.

39.

k55 I B B

WP 37 I AR
J5 FHL7K L 2
A 9l FH ey
HL T % is e o
P10 2%
TCTE 5 7= W
ZE e B
KI5 MR %% 2
MU WS 2

v 5 A ol
Bi4:

oAt

it

BT AR

DY IRAERR

A7 TBURI bR PRI 451 2K

IV ESIN RIEEPS

it

RISCES
NENI T

32,542,360.97
6,223,675.00
3,946,478.97
5,296,101.66
2,980,382.43
1,889,004.80
1,631,423.29
1,200,000.00
699,846.34
357,140.02
179,265.59
5,038,987.52

RKEES -5
AT

29,353,313.42
6,701,715.85
6,026,325.00
5,610,792.02
2,687,761.43
1,804,779.91
1,073,836.45
4,511,350.00
572,344.77
271,373.49
205,185.64
5,689,571.22

61,984,666.59

64,508,349.20

YNV

7,354,984.96
405,200.00
60,100.00

LA
ANIRMIT

7,820,284.96

AWATIZ M T RERAIN, R MA G LI R A TF 225 T 47k A [R) S5 B AR AT 1)
SRS A VAR, TR T AN B AR T A o

ERIZIT TN

BURF AN

AT B T4 SR e

&
[ 5 B 7 Ak B A
HoAt

it

AAE it LAE S
ARG ARG
- 1,148,700.00
318,386.67 6,254.92
11,458.49 -
67.94 888.00
329,913.10 1,155,842.92

97
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40.

41.

42.

EVANSCH

[ 5 B8 Ak AR
FoAt

it

P B2

ST
o JiE P13 Bt 2 H
AN TR 2
s ATk

it

PGB 5 2 TR I T 2

S A

FEERIF RATRUR 24% 151 FrA3 B 2 H (R AR 22%)
ANHT AR GBS

g S i Al

I3 SR Hi X B 7 S 1

A NN A A

GBI AL M

Piid B2

HAtZr e iiat

BOE 3 m vl R SR K
o JiE JIT 43 Bt 2 W

it

98

A R NS 37
ARG ARG
39,048.28 357,106.44
783.84 142.93
39,832.12 357,249.37
AR NS S
ARG ARG
6,643,548.78  19,643,238.74
10,857,694.33  (3,912,738.73)
5,220.51 183,227.06
5,220.51 183,227.06

17,506,463.62

15,913,727.07

A 2T
AT

72,138,931.90
17,313,343.66
303,395.92
92,651.73
61,001.98
5,220.51
(269,150.18)

A 2L
NV

74,153,328.24
16,313,732.21
305,940.50

(706,756.96)
416,115.67
183,227.06

(598,531.41)

17,506,463.62

15,913,727.07

A B A B
AN Mot AN Mot
346,844.46 ;
(86,711.10) ;
260,133.36
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43, W AIEEN Y

AR SARA TR0
IEAF SRR <

JE BN H A = H AN -
A7 JBLR] NP K I
BN S el

it

44, BEiERA TR

R 13RI VA D 2B B AR I B e
e AIRE
e BE IR AE T 52
5 Bt 4t IH
T 57 P
TIYIRr 1 95 S
Kb L] 2 P (R
BB R/ ()
[z gili U N
I SEO B AL B R R/ 3R)
3 S P AR B FR /(B )
2B R MO H R 3
2B MERAST I H X3 0

2 i B A M DL R

Bl e B AN W S I 0
DL IR RN
il BLE AR
e PR P AR AR
e DA DI AT R

Pl KL 1 A

FARE FHIEL
ARG ARG
528,706,078.17  264,850,689.42

(481,315,453.90)  (32,675,197.96)

371,081,514.69
1,957,522,500.00

228.248,324.53
600,000,000.00

2,375,994,638.96 1,060,423,815.99

NGy
AR MG

FAE R
AR MG

54,632,468.28 58,239,601.17

7,820,284.96 -
2,980,382.43 2,687,761.43
1,889,004.80 1,804,779.91
3,946,478.97 6,026,325.00
27,589.79 357,106.44

28,154,695.62
(127,145,473.71)
(41,819,397.30)
10,857,694.33
(386,887,652.58)
872,966,406.06

(9,635,143.22)
(64,835,740.82)
21,791,297.75
(3,912,738.73)
(782,028,682.85)
2,244,996,421.74

427,422,481.65  1,475,490,987.82

- 299,573.47
2,375,994,638.96  1,060,423,815.99
1,060,423,815.99 481,290,614.24

1,315,570,822.97 578,833,628.28

99
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45.

Rt

MRYEAHRAT 1) A R A 45

Koy ARSI N A FR AR A R RE , AT RO 2B A5 R o D BA T 4R

TP R, XL T I UARAT I8 b D SRR 22 (1o ANRAT (1058 B2 e VP A ix 2

A FR A E AR, BABRSE 1A 73 BC BEU A P A Flk

ANe]

G0 BT A SRR 2% 20 P8 1 A B2 AR IR I 2 v BOR SRR Al e, X S8y il
5

Gt 4 55 4R IR PR 2 TF UK 5 TR Al Ry — 2

HIESEREPSE

2

FLIN

GIESSELION

Ferpe p i IRIALE
S 20 IEREL N
FeAt N 150

FL
FLRNECT )
Gy A
AR

*hrefE B

I IH A 35

PEATESC

Forp DR E B S
e B LAY B
BT B

It

b=y

St

P
paf
=

7

Ao
ASHE R
BT BB HEAT it
133,908,241.71 22,319,719.37 - 156,227,961.08
55,342,596.48 22,080,008.28 - 77,422,604.76
(51,092,507.38) 51,092,507.38 - -
84,736,769.00 212,308.55 - 84,949,077.55
(6,171,123.77) 27,402.54 - (6,143,721.23)

42,996,409.91

41,382,700.25

84,379,110.16

90,911,831.80

(19,062,980.88)

71,848,850.92

5,377,537,475.86

2,135,412,719.49

(1,844,052,932.46)

5,668,897,262.89

4,035,387,048.82

2,086,548,925.30

(1,744,052,932.46)

4,377,883,041.66

4,804,472.91
3,991,660.46
1,513,757.63

327,211.73
2,150,691.10

4,011,393.29
80,599.00
80,599.00

100

8,815,866.20
4,072,259.46
1,594,356.63

327,211.73
2,150,691.10
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45.

oyt - &

FLIN

GIESSELION

Horpe 3 EIRIALE N
S O Y IEREL PN
oAb N3

FL L H
ENVFE /(1)
IR A
sty

HhrefE B

1 IH AN 3%

PEATESC

Forpe R E S
e LAY B
kw2

I

b=y

Lt

P
paf
/j

LRI

BT

135,584,536.34

BB

13,176,524.70

il s

it

148,761,061.04

51,564,896.39 8,324,225.70 - 59,889,122.09
749,577.63 (749,577.63) -
86,684,570.06 4,829,993.30 - 91,514,563.36
(2,664,930.11) 22,305.70 (2,642,624.41)
45,609,619.28 29,796,707.07 - 75,406,326.35

89,974,917.06

(16,620,182.37)

73,354,734.69

4,765,120,565.74

1,936,455,349.55

(1,948,900,283.92)

4,752,675,631.37

3,210,750,031.41

1,867,398,980.79

(1,551,344,283.92)

3,526,804,728.28

6,511,565.63
797,506.60
70,800.00
576,283.60
150,423.00

(D327 dh 80k 55 3 73 IS AR SN

FPARAT ML 5%
A bS5

it

QI 73 IR SR AT TN

YT A BIRF AT SN
DR HABE S R3S SR N

it

(3 P BT (M k43 st v 7

AARAT A AR S B AL+ BB o
101

4,007,300.71
2,466,462.26
1,532,686.02

933,776.24

A R
NENI

43,327,067.66
112,900,893.42

10,518,866.34
3,263,968.86
1,603,486.02
1,510,059.84
150,423.00

FAE R
NENI

49,440,433.16
99,320,627.88

156,227,961.08

148,761,061.04

A R
NENI

79,078,538.07
77,149,423.01

FAE R
NENI

62,033,699.16
86,727,361.88

156,227,961.08

148,761,061.04
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45, rERE - 2
()% B P AR
AT R AR RIKTT 25 AL RO R
Gy R IRV A A8 S LA BR A Sy s b i it 3 SISO N R 308 Bl FH e 45 2 P S BN
AN E o
46.  KHEIT KR KIHALY)
OEzixes PN IPS /9

22 TE b S Mk 28 PR EMEA  FERARERAT LA
PERR - 1A
[ B AR AT B A A e [E] SeRbRS:  955790,000,000.00  100%

AHAT I 2R BEAR L PR [ B AR AT A R 28 7] 20114 B v W 8 A Je R L I AR 4k, AT
A i 2 BE2) W) yMorgan Stanley

Q)5 ARAT K AEA G AEAAFAELE RIS AR [ HAB ST

ELY 1 T A RIKTT KA
JEEAR IR A7 R 2 7] Hh ] 7 EE SRR/
JEERR PR 7 e 55 i (AT B 22 ) b [EESIZi RN
JEERR L PERBEBE ) (B 50O A7 BR 22 b [EESIZi RN
JERR L PEANE REAR () A BR 2w I _E i EIE SRR/
PERR PR 5 (h BEDAT BR 2 ) SRIESHatis? EE SR E/A!
JEERR P B 55 (i) A PR ) i EE SR E/A!
JEERR PR i) (i) A7 B 22 w1 L EE SRR/
JEERR P R 55 Bl (i) A R 7 i [EESIZi RN
JEERR IR f g 5 AT PR 24 W) R 2 [F) B AT FE RS
1N PR E/AT
=R HICERAT (P ED A PR 7 i XA AT B
INERd e P R/

AARAT R I WAFEARA T IS BN 5y B HOR AR S VNI 5 1 5 B R AR s D) X
o S 7 AT B (R B A 2 ) o AARAT R T HRRIRAS Hy AT B B s, X T
RIRAZ Sy AT 15 I 5 o
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46.

G)AHAT 5 FRIKTT AEA S W] A& 2E T FE KRR A o

FLEHA

JEEAR A PR
B HRATAT B 22 )
ZEEAR A HIARAT
(P AT B2 7]

AR

JEERR 3R

B B T A B 22 7
JEERR LR B 7 A 55

HACP ) A R A ]
ZEE A HIRARAT

(F BEDATBR 2 7]

PERR LA

P A PR 2 ]
FEEAR P s A

(P EHABRA
JEEAR 1A i 2
M55 (_F ) A BR A
JEEAR L 1R s 45
Hkg (i) AT A T
JEEAR L PFRHE 8 o5t )
(B HBRA A
PEAR L PFRIE BB
(B A BRA A
JEEAR - PF AR5 5 Jit )
AtE)ABRA A
PEMR - PFRIAE SRS 4
EHA R AT

it

103

AAE BT AR
SR EL51 (%) S0 LEH1 (%)
ARt AR Mt
2,297,146.64 2.45
17,852.53 0.01
AAE B A S
ot EE 1) (%) E L1 (%)
ARt AR Mt
1,253,154.06 0.84 467,753.30 1.38
246,510.17 0.17 241,489.80 0.71
607,797.22 0.41
2,107,461.45 1.42 709,243.10 2.09
AAE B A S
E EE 91 (%) EH L1 (%)
AR Mt ARt
79,479,248.09 88.52 66,227,089.09 66.79
1,250,000.00 1.39 1,590,000.00 1.60
325,000.00 0.36
100,000.00 0.11 -
65,000.00 0.07
50,000.00 0.06
30,000.00 0.03 25,000.00 0.03
30,000.00 0.03 25,000.00 0.03
81,329,248.09 90.57 67,867,089.09 68.45

_44 -



JEEAR L PR [ e T (b B A R 7
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

46.

BN VIES VS DI
(3)AHRAT 55 KTy AR IR T R KRB ) - 4
TR,

A B AR
L b5 (%) L LA (%)
NG ARG
IR IR H BT
(P ENABRA ] 1,187,507.18 24.55 46,265.99 0.61
Mh 28 S R 9
A BT AR
SR EE A1 (%0) SR L5 (%)
AR M AR M
PEAR L
MEPHA PR 2w 3,311,350.00 5.13
PERR B RIE SR
() A R A ] 1,200,000.00 1.94 1,200,000.00 1.86
it 1,200,000.00 1.94 4,511,350.00 6.99
AHATAE H M5 I FE b — e Ml 2k 5 R T AT AL & o
(4) KERAT Z) AR 45 57 450
FRE %4
TEREL SEIEL
LH ELA51(%0) Rl A5 (%)
NI NI
SRR HIARAT
(P EHABRA A 126,018,000.00 5.74
A&
EREL EAEL
SR EE A1 (%) LA L5 (%)
NI NI
SRR HBARAT
(P ENA R AW 17,852.53 0.05
TN L
TEREL SERIEL
SH b5 (%) it 1 LA (%)
B A PR AR Mt AR Mt
FrRERAT A PR A H 135,469,350.00 81.87 98,678,230.00 30.96
104
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46 KIITHR RIS - 4
OES S P Z

A 3K
FEAREL SEHIEL
il (%) S LB (%)
ARt ARt
FEERR L PEF) % 77 i 5%

WP ED) A R A A 36,571,358.59 1.41 38,186,666.28 2.14
A 4,533.69 0.00 179.44 0.00
=ann 36,575,892.28 1.41 38,186,845.72 2.14
PAT AR

EAREL EAIEL
SH EL 51 (%) S0 LEH1 (%)
ARt ARt
PERE T F)

FrRERATA PR A 1,194,163.96 7.04 52,409.07 0.73
FEERE - PER % 77 e 4%

(P ED)A R A A 8,126.96 0.05 1,909.32 0.03
HiAth - 0.02 0.00
&t 1,202,290.92 7.09 54,318.41 0.76
HoAth %% 7~

EAREL EHIEL
] LA (%0) S EEA1(%)
ARt ARt
PERE LT F)

MEPHNA B2 ] 4,107,836.53 16.50 26,242.976.84 7.84
PERE L1 F)

FraRATH PR A A 119,395.94 0.48 6,300.51 0.00
=unn 422723247 16.98 26,249.277.35 7.84
ot g1 i

EAREL EAEL
Rl EL51 (%) e LE1 (%)
ARt ARt
PERE ST F)

MEIHA B 2 ] 3,180,400.44 15.04 3,442,064.44 26.08
FEERE = P14 3 Al 2%

(B AR A ] 200,000.00 0.95
FERR A PHRME B

(B AR A W] - 300,000.00 227
&t 3,380,400.44 15.99 3,742,064.44 28.35
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46.  RIKITRANIAY) - 8

(5) R BN D3 AT
AR R FAERIHL
& EEA1 (%) & EL1 (%)
ARG ARG

B HEN DL HOH 5,611,313.60 17.24 4,650,391.10 15.84

FEEE B SRR ot AT TR . FEE ARG B N 5

47.  FHMNIH

EREL SEHIEL
AR MT AR MT
PR R 193,190,400.00 4,550,200.00
48.  ZALIS
TEAREL EYIEL
e AR ra Ao
THCAT K 483,000,000.00  323,000,000.00
T 483,000,000.00  323,000,000.00

49.  BARLEE

ARATARYE CRVARAT BEA 78 2 24T BIMED) (B BRAT I A B4 IR B 29 20044F 5525 %)
TR BEATE L R GO TEARTEAL R T

TEREL EYIEL
ATt ANRHT7t
TR % 7= 629,131 876,284
T3 ARG 8 A 51,773 76,898
AR 1,287,499 1,225,555
Hor: RZLwAR 1,270,216 1,215,410
R FRAFN 17,283 10,145
WA N Wz 99.52% 66.14%
A IS 100.88% 66.70%
106
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50.

51.

)

H G
BEAGR H L, AREATE AR T, XM AR S E S AN

FEARK FHIE
PNEIER v PNEIER v

AN SR 2 AL (1 SR AR B At

Kok HIESH 1 & 5,747 3,340
Hrediik H G5 2 & 5,747 69
Hrediik H IG5 3 &4 4,164 -

=ain 15,658 3,409

IR 3
IR A A IR
(DAt

AARAT T 2P 28 T B AT AARA T 1 2 PR AU U, o2 el LR AIE ], Al
W T 2 PN A . ACRAT H AU ) 1 2 X 4 (5 TR sl I XU
T3 XGRS AR A RS, I T d DX 0,455 AT UG AT 4 XS

AERAT S AU BRI H A AE RS A i 2 TR A =4 (1P, R B AR AT 22
Mk 21 G 5 i AR BB AR AT, AEARAT A 2t e KA o SE TN H bs, AR
AT DRURSE 57 B8R 1) A SR e A i A B A ARA T P W £ 25 b DA, 3 3738 =24 PR KU 7K 32 i
L NPEAT RS 2], JF I I R G PR BEI AR S SN T FE 0T B A RS EAT B, g XU 428
THE FRE RIVE T 2 A -

AARAT S T DT e AT RE R RS B g, RS R s R I R Y
I

D BUERMGUR R AL SR RS . TS SWEES R R KNSR B
B B PR ARA T AR 25 T Bl Kok 55 MR«
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51.

D

R R - 4
e FH AU
(Df5F H AU 2

{5 IR 2 5095 N BAT ot T35 24 1 7 A48 2K FR XU o

AT IR 2ok A TE DY . ARATENRE B i, $UT A6z
IR DEERAERE e AR 8 BRI, A DT EAT (5 R AR5 DY o &, e b B R At
BEAh, AHATRAF DT H R BN DY 5 8 2, 5 VR, TR TR pRR R KR
I TR KT 75 558 AT WA IR R o ANHRA T A8 L2 0 R G IR i 01 10 00 1 Hh 4
LA AT I AR AZ 2 T (I 55 IR DU 2275 A8 BUIR DUk 2 45 H X
(o ANHRAT L N BN 2 45 F PP bRt 2 )7 B4R HPIRDUAE VP A, 245 T3R5 HUE,
B ATAERAS T [ N AT S DY G

()5 RAR RIS e 1

FEANTE FE Al A R E DR sl AR AS PR S 00 &, 3887 50tk H oK AR F XU i 1
AR R BR IR AEAE R 5 KT E, B KA HI XU i 81 s i

EAREL FEHIEL
AR Mt AR Mt

KWITH
R AT 728,143,511.04  968,681,000.00
IV CQEIRN & el 2,567,633,014.69  894,475,324.53
o A7 RN I 370,676,314.69  228,248,324.53
Prh %4 2,196,956,700.00  666,227,000.00
A oy P G Rl g 1,755,557,401.00 2,529,763,390.00
INEeIPSS 33,172,065.33  25,013,920.47
oAth 4l % 7 5,380,243.51  27,403,578.76
KWIH A 5,089,886,235.57 4,445,337,213.76
RANIH AT 193,190,400.00 4,550,200.00

it
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51. A PR - 4
I fEHXEE - 2

QA N - 4

B TARHOTEAN, ABRATH FLAR DT RANI H S5k S iR A5 1 AR R R 52 (1)

A7 FH R S A EL R SRS B R PR A P RS L 1 28 Wl 32 7K
(3) AT LT KA A WA ] b 5 Tt

T8 AR

(i) 5 2011 46 12 [ 31 Hil, AHATAAEAEE IR 10 SEOR1 58 R R 3

i, (2010 4F: T6)
(if) AT Rk AEL

FERE
IEH &it
AR Mt AR Mt
RGN E#GR
SRk 728,143,511.04 728,143,511.04
AL [] M 2 2,567,633,014.69  2,567,633,014.69
FEHIEL
B &t
AR AR T
RICGE AN G
DUk 968,681,000.00 968,681,000.00
IR &8 894,475,324.53 894,475,324.53

ASARA T Xk 0 AR B S0 19 L F) DR B LA B I AL [ M s 3t 2 4 B2 5 DAl 1) 5 R 4 e v

o
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51 MGEHE - 4

AR - o

(43 o 1 s 7=
R FEHEL
AR TG AR TG
HE S !
G AT IR R (1) 1,755,557,401.00 2,529,763,390.00

(i) AH TR

FEARE FEHEL
NG NG
Al - B
AA3 - 211,599,030.00
ARVERE) 1,755,557,401.00 2,318,164,360.00
Gt 1,755,557,401.00 2,529,763,390.00

LA EVFR S R I B PP

TE: RUVPGGIRES S L EONABAT R A RAT R0 . SR B B A R,
Horp R m AR ORI A UL L.

(5) e 5% 7 FH AU S v B 20
AR AT A PR B (5 S SR h B, ARG BT 2 BHE 12(2).
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51.

(I1I)

DR L - 4k

s XS

AN R4 S LA 2 BRI YRR S BRI S0« TEBDE ARG RS S BN Ve
SRS YRR SRR ARG R MU B 53 0 e AR B39 1 A DCE 77«

(1)

2)

TP S

M (P NSRRI ARA TR S e, ARAT DR 3F 587 i 8l LB AR T
25%. [AIIN, AHRAT MR 587 K AT A AN [R) ST BRORH e sl 0 ARG At S 42 o

BEXRHAR B PE RS, AHRAT 5 AR Al P AU 42 B 2 AL 4T
(i) ARATHEVIIIERATHAS a5k~ gk IR, BRAURIERFR IV 1A 5

(i) B UE B BB H HAIT UG A S . T KRS S 18
WRAT B/t 4 M ) e AL 5

(iid) B PUDTE P B W B S B AR T (ALCOFR I AL 55 53K, # IR ACERAT
A 78 AL BN BE < A0 A B R TE )

AEfT A s XU 23 B
AHRAT 57 LAt (1 2 e S s i

NROGARAT B TR HARRT AR e R B 5 e B (ot d s R I LR A 4 R DL 1 £
W R 3 Hr

AR
B/ g 3 LAHBL 13 A HER 312 A HUA LAELLE AR £l
AR F78 ANRAFT AR F78 AR F78 ANRAF AR F78 AR
AE P JARAT R 47,711 - 481,315 529,026
AE A 71,082 300,654 - - 371,736
PRt v 1,701,445 257,813 248,159 - - 2,207,417
G AR - 1,775,785 - - - 1,775,785
RIGGE IR - 93,186 108,451 360,541 207,806 - 769,984
oAt 4 ol % 7 - 4,112 - 119- - 1,209 5,440
SRS 1,820,238 2,431,550 108,451 608,819 207,806 482,524 5,659,388
Sl
[ B HEAl 4 Rl BT LA £ T8GR 3 3 - - 493,502 - - 493,505
PANH 4L - - - 169,941 - - 169,941
S [P 7 - 1,081,402 - - 1,081,402
WA K 71,253 842,505 254,938 1,491,135 - 2,659,831
Al 5 1 £ - 16,805 560 - 2,228 19,593
Sl G vl 71,256 1,940,712 255,498 2,154,578 - 2,228 4,424272
A 1,748,982 490,838 (147,047) (1,545,759) 207,806 480,296 1,235,116
111
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51, MEEH - 4

(D) PEshtER - 4

Q) TR ERRB AT - 4

SEYIL
Bl g1/ g LAHUA 13 A HUW 312 AHUA LAERLE A 1B it
ARTT7E ARTTIE ARTT7E ARTT7E ARTTIE ARTT7E ARTTIE
AFTBCR AT 232,247 32,675 264,922
A7) s 228,248 - - - 228,248
Prth %4 - 600,700 66,438 667,138
Bl I T 2,347,299 201,392 - - 2,548,691
RILGEFIEHGHK - 806 508,476 283,824 219,229 - 1,012,335
oAl Gl 7 120 26,253 - 6 - 1,025 27,404
K Tt 460,615 2,975,058 776,306 283,830 219,229 33,700 4,748,738
Sl A5
[ B HEA 4 Rl BT LAS) A7 TG 33 3 - 177,368 177,371
VN - - 222,198 98,730 320,928
S R0 4 R % 7 192,165 822,860 201,845 - 1,216,870
W AE K 70,191 - 214,187 1,546,008 - - 1,830,386
oAt 4l 145 - 5,480 - - 2,041 301 7,822
KISt ety 262,359 828,340 638,230 1,822,106 2,041 301 3,553,377
A 198,256 2,146,718 138,076 (1,538,276) 217,188 33,399 1,195,361

(IV) A

T 32 AU 8 DR T 2 A% H BN AR AR Bl A AR A T AR AL 55 AR R (R XU . AR AT
T 32 AU 2 AR A RS AR A< RS o ASERA T i3 ARG B B0 sC AT RS 2
(BLAEAC 2 BRI, A PR L 453 BR A, 505 Bk H A R Bk 0 AT, i (i LR AeAT T 3 X ¢
A T MRS 28 BEAR DT T b AU () 20 5 391 1) B A B B R B A, ANRATE
LM T i AR RS PR R, RIS T i WSS B A A AR S L o o
SE YIS T MU BEEA T o UF o ANRAT CIFHRREAT I St IR R 1) 57 A
R T U, I LA B o g R PR B

(1) AN RS

AT NI E SN RO R, A BLEIe. Mo T, AT

e YNNI WS o

ARERAT X AN XS = S i 11 PR 2
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51, JNEGERE - &k
V) TR - 4

(1) AMEIR - 4

AT RBE PRI TR S 0 b .

SR

A7 TR RARA T K
AFTBRNE
Prihipi s

A2 Ty V<Rl ot
A R
FTRGTAR AR
FoAt b -

S it

il 47 f5t

(7 b R At <5 i L
AR
FATE

S EVEAE AT
WA K

AT AR
HoAth ik 4745

SRR

Bk

SExfilgE

A7 TR RARAT K
AFTB RN 5
PrihivE s

AL o VLA g
INZS @SN

8 G V&
Sttt

SRl A

Sexhl g Ao
[Fi b R At <5 AT L)
AF BN
PRNTE G
S H [0 < i %
ATk
NS AR
At i 975

Rl AT
B kT

SEARHL

ARG EEARTG  BTHART  EMGFIART A G&

ARMT  IEARMTR HEARTTIT HEARTTILE rdEARTTIT
526,750 1,859 97 - 528,706
307,892 46,620 16,164 - 370,676
1,800,000 396,957 - - 2,196,957
1,755,557 - - . 1,755,557
24,865 8,307 - - 33,172
544,500 183,644 - - 728,144
1,209 4,166 5 . 5,380
4,960,773 641,553 16,266 - 5,618,592
476,982 - - - 476,982
30,000 135,469 - . 165,469
1,080,300 - - - 1,080,300
2,563,046 37,025 59 - 2,600,130
15,768 1,202 - . 16,970
226,598 (208,755) 1,750 - 19,593
4,392,694 (35,059) 1,809 - 4,359,444
568,079 676,612 14,457 - 1,259,148

HEYIHL

ART  EGTARE  BOHART  BHTART ASTEL

ARMTRH HEART T e ARRTE HIEARGD T Irea ARM T
259,398 5,232 221 . 264,851
5,354 202,266 20,581 47 228,248
600,000 66,227 - - 666,227
2,529,763 - - - 2,529,763
22,075 2,939 - - 25,014
770,000 198,681 - - 968,681
(98,192) 125,590 6 - 27,404
4,088,398 600,935 20,808 47 4,710,188
173,176 - - - 173,176
220,000 98,678 - - 318,678
1,212,000 - - - 1,212,000
1,678,683 104,559 2,527 - 1,785,769
7,055 150 - - 7,205
2,470 3,527 1,825 - 7,822
3,293,384 206,914 4352 - 3,504,650
795,014 394,021 16,456 47 1,205,538
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51 MRS EE - 4k
av) R - 4
(1) SNEAR - 4k

RIS TR XS BT A M RIS S R RN THE 5% B0 5% AR 00 K, XA
WRATIZ T B AR 5 o

NG AEE
P HE B gh P B g
B /(e B4 /(D)
ANEMTIT ANEMTIT
THE 5% (25,915) (8,068)
2 1H 5% 25,915 8,068
(2) FIZ A

AR BRI A R A B B R B9 Rt 28 setird DL S it st R b 2 4R 12
RSO K S HE 2 VA SR o ASARAT (AN 55 D3N 2 A0 R B 3R] 26 B A ARAT
B IATFE BN, N5 DT A7 A A b N RARAT BT (A R I AR SR VRNV
ISl FNMETERAE . SRBORR T e .

ARV ECRH, AR RS LA BURG T

EARKL
INMHPW 15340 A 3Z12AH 1 554 SHEML it &it

ARMATIG  ARGATRE ARGATE ARGATE  ARGTLE ARGTIE ARBTIG

SR
AL JHRAT 3K 47,391 - - - - 481,315 528,706
rey NI el 370,676 - - - 370,676
Pl 4 1,957,523 - 239,434 - - - 2,196,957
L A 640,715 504,389 136,800 473,653 - 1,755,557
PSR S - - - - 33,172 33,172
RIS L HHK 90,075 588,569 49,500 - - - 728,144
A S - - - - - 5,380 5,380
SR A 3,106,380 1,092,958 425,734 473,653 - 519,867 5,618,592

SR
[i] b B Aty 4 R BT A A7 T T 3 - 476,979 - - - 476,982
FAE 4 - 165,469 - - - 165,469
St [ e 4 e 0% 7 2K 1,080,300 - - 1,080,300
MRS AT K 905,834 252,932 1,441,364 - 2,600,130
PEASFIE - - - - 16,970 16,970
oA 4k 47 435 - - - - - 19,593 19,593
SR A T 1,986,137 252,932 2,083,812 - - 36,563 4,359,444
PP AR Sk~ 1,120,243 840,026  (1,658,078) 473,653 - 483304 1,259,148
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51 MUBSERE - 48
V) ik - 4

@) FIRRAK - 4

AEHIEL
I™MHW 152340 3R H 1 554 SHELLE At &it
ARTT6  ARTTIE ARTTx ARMTx ARBTI ARMGTIE ARTTIC
SR
AL RT3 259,398 5,453 264,851
reanaciNa/ e 228,248 - 228,248
g 4 600,000 66,227 - - - 666,227
L - 793,584 300,779 512,143 923,257 - 2,529,763
PSR S - - - - 25,014 25,014
RIS K 599,341 369,340 - 968,681
oAb S bt - - 27,404 27,404
SRR A T 1,087,646 1,459,152 670,119 512,143 923,257 57,871 4,710,188
SR
[i] b B At 4 R BT A A7 T T 3 - 173,173 173,176
AT 98,678 220,000 - 318,678
St [ e 4 0% 7 2 1,012,000 200,000 - 1,212,000
MRS AT K 70,164 211,512 1,504,093 - 1,785,769
PNASFE - - - 7,205 7,205
L Ath 4 il 47 £ 7,822 7,822
ERl AT 1,180,845 631,512 1,677,266 15,027 3,504,650
A (93,199) 827,640  (1,007,147) 512,143 923,257 42,844 1,205,538

FYFRELENT I BT

B 7 R T8 56 L O S A AT A2 BT b J 3
AL SR R KSR o L7 90175 7 K5 TS R 1 2
SR JE VPRI R S B BTSRRI BT RASORE £006 b VR

LB B S SR, 4T BT R % 77
T BSOS A AR A ABAT A B I

RIS TR B R H <k

HF ETE 50 MEE R
HMIZR B 50 MR

AFEEL
Py AR o
SN/ (k)
PNEI i v

(14,561)
14,561
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52.

AL R G TR 2 SAE

O SO Al AR RIS SR A DG 117 3 TR 2 5 < T R A G B AR i o A
FAAEE RIS I DL N, WA IBUETF A 5 e, A S DR 28 se i E A e A D
FEGRZ R IAIINE DL N, 2 Se (E ) S A AE AR L L 4).

St AT At S T AW K ER A IR PR R

o FATHRUES I S AT IFAFAET R T 37 1) Bl 9% 7™ B e i DA T 10 28 SR AR 23 3ol 2 AT
RIS BRI S AT A S AT ZE A 2

o Al TR Al Dot (AN RAEAT AR ) I 2 Se U % AR KB i R LA O S
fid PR 308 ) 5 R 20k R TR R AT T 3558 2 ks A

o ATAETRMA S ERANEER T A TR 852 o WERAFAER TR, ARAESE
BRI A= T B 2 SEA B R P AR R I <8 it i3 D2 A0 Y A AT vl e 0y it Ao o1
58 HATIEFBUAT A TR 2 SR ER T IROE A (n — I A A o S o

NERIR TAEARAT H 2R E R Ml 710 2 e (E A S

EREL EATEL

Vi T NI NN Vi T NS E
AR Mt AR AR M ARMIt

Kl L AONS
A7 TR SR AT 2RI 528,706,078.17 528,706,078.17 264,850,689.42 264,850,689.42
e qENE el 370,676,314.69 370,676,314.69 228,248,324.52 228,248,324.52
PR vt 4 2,196,956,700.00  2,196,956,700.00 666,227,000.00 666,227,000.00
Ry A Rl s 1,755,557,401.00  1,755,557,401.00  2,529,763,390.00 2,529,763,390.00
IR S, 33,172,065.33 33,172,065.33 25,013,920.47 25,013,920.47
RIBGGHRFN K 728,143,511.04 728,143,511.04 968,681,000.00 968,681,000.00
oAt 4>t = 5,380,243.51 5,380,243.51 27,403,578.76 27,403,578.76
S AR 5,618,592,313.74  5,618,592,313.74  4,710,187,903.17  4,710,187,903.17

S5

[ii] s K FAth 45 e

WA AE TBGER I 476,982,076.68 476,982,076.68 173,175,536.74 173,175,536.74
PFNF 4 165,469,350.00 165,469,350.00 318,678,230.00 318,678,230.00
S H [ 0 4 Rl % = 1,080,300,000.00  1,080,300,000.00  1,212,000,000.00 1,212,000,000.00
WA 2K 2,600,129,771.29  2,600,129,771.29  1,785,769,494.51 1,785,769,494.51
N A AR 16,969,678.60 16,969,678.60 7,204,459.50 7,204,459.50
HoAth 4 Fl 471 £57 19,593,304.55 19,593,304.55 7,821,871.45 7,821,871.45
SRl AT 4359,444,181.12  4,359,444,181.12  3,504,649,592.20  3,504,649,592.20

116

-57-



JEEAR L PR [ e T (b B A R 7
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

52.

SRR T AR T A SR - &k

B

SO ERIZH
LA SR HEAT Ja STt (R i 5™ St ot LA etk b i =200 irin b
B 129 RSB AT R T 37 ORZ 1 ) FRARAN 5

852 SRS HAREEWIC B ) sl e (L R Ha A AE S nDOR SR 2 . BRIl iy EASK
ISP SN WA Tk VN EREEER

55 3 RS LURDULEE R 10T I 5 LAA (1072 5 D FE A A 1) 55 s A 5 R i AL (AN ] B¢
) -

AR
H1RH H2RH 3N ail

HOARTIE  HoARALE  FAARTT e NG

2 5y M G Rl s e - 1,755,557,401.00 - 1,755,557,401.00
Kol LAY - 1,755,557,401.00 - 1,755,557,401.00
FEHIEL
B1EYH F2 Y% F 3% &t
A AR MG A AR MG A ANRMIT ra N
A oy M G Rl e - 2,529,763,390.00 - 2,529.763,390.00
SR AT 2.529,763,390.00 - 2,529.763,390.00

ARERE S BAEFEAARAT I Rl (1 A SRUMEVHRE R ACES 1 RGN 2 JZ B2 TR e o

AEAT WIARATIREA B9 LA 2 So U (v 5 0 < Rl 08 7 AR B2 TE N 24 0340 & 1) 8 Se i (AR B 2
MR 42,455,570.30 Ju(_ BAERE: BT NIRRT 22,861,225.75 JG).

AARAT S A S 2 IR 3 S U e TR A SR (B B, B9 o B B o e
Hon el B Seys i fe v 1 H S AE ORIV 554075 rh 3 e 1) ik R fR 2 Se (i 10
T BRI A 2 JTIREU B s 5 20 . 1ot TR IEiRAE A DT 3R I Ba i I oL, %
S R e R DRAS R A T T3 24 H— 8O 2 i 20 R & BB . MR IR P A
F5 H EEAR PR FH N B B AT AR SR LM AR HARSE A2 B0 T TN 51, 0 2 SU i e O e
TR ()5 BRI RGP AT B

BEAh, WSl i RS B DL R AR X i B A AT TR i TP, B2 5
RN 52 O BT 2 A S (B 2 1. A T E BB e & Fe (i, AR
AT R B 2B (AT AT EEAE IR A2 B &5 SRR A T 37 ) S Bt A h 228 Rl A€ A L i A
R B -
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52, LRbCRIGREESIR A RIME - S
AT AIHFTRA LA FE v i Al 7= 8O BUR 5157 . AT 2506 . SRbpLR 5
F 5N AR . UAAETR IR T IN, ANEAT R TR R T IRINVE N A R (s ML
TR RN, SR A AR A Rl . AEA AR Fh b K 2 10 S B FR I 35 h £k
AT X B MR R 22, WG A ZESE, BNSH 5P RAERT T BB .
TR R TR A S B, — i S, IR ERNE LA A B 1 2 2
B IARAE— R 2K

53. HeREE

il LEAECHE Ca% 2011 SRR T BT T H 02K

54, WHSSHREERZ HEHE
A EAREL T 2012 4 4 A 12 HE AR TR HE0E,

SRR AR *
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JEEMR 3 B B 8RAT (o B A PR )
*hFEB R

H %

FFETER) I 2B BT A
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HFETERC)

JEERR L PHR [ BB AT (R DA R 2 ]
INELY RSN RS
2011 4 12 J 31 HibkAEREs

il
AR MIT
IR A T H R A 72,138,931.90
P4
1. AREEFEH AN 3 T MR RS 331,410.02
2. ARAEFEH IR AR S 789,100.09
3. KREEREE R AR 4 M B E a4 783.59
4, KRAEPETCIEH P=Weas I B T RV 51 3035 45 944.502.41
5. AR B H) SC BRI MY 55 FH A 2 142,856.01
6. ANEEREPER M B = o SO E AR B 45 2k 636,173.00
7. ARAEFEH) IR S5 4 A0 03 s vk &) 1,336,637.74
4,181,462.86
P
7 T R E ] e R Tl A =R 5,155,187.00
2. AR FE AT R HT PR A R SN 1,121,459.09
3. REFEGTFA A EZ SR 5 42.455,570.30
4, A PEATHRFI I T ok 160,900.00
48.,893,116.39
AAE R N gl B BT A0 27,427278.37

e MEEBSHOCMIESK, AWRATH G 1IN AR T AU REL, IR SRS %,
A LTI 55 R I AL )
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TR )
B ()

AR PR S5 ) 45 B 24 ) B 47
e i

2011 4E 12 A 31 [

i
(RO ST
RN
1 BOBEAT
i 4
A5 e
ROCR)

R ATHK

A i

B b i

2 2

T

AL B

Seh
BRI AT EE V4

TR
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EARK
ARG

496,332,588.30
367,705,675.95
1,115,286.13
2,196,956,700.00
1,755,557,401.00
31,357,968.11
378,143,511.04
18,852,614.00
2,640,774.16
5,458,379.62
23,416,577.55
100,000,000.00

FHIEL
ARG

264,784,205.12
223,573,363.29
167,946,552.79
600,000,000.00
2,529,763,390.00
21,135,748.78
499,340,500.00
19,488,787.00
2,820,365.61
5,196,693.32
4,155,439.36
33,514,959.83
100,000,000.00

5,377,537,475.86

4,471,720,005.10
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TR
R
PR PR R (o A W 7 54

Wik - &k
2011 £ 12 H 31 H

fifot
[7 b B FL At < R A LA A7 UK
WRAT A I
PEANBEE
Sz H [ g < 5 7 K
MRCAT K
IS A BT 37 T
AR B
A AR
o SIE P A 97 05
FoAd A £t

TR

e
S A
AR AR
YA
AR &
R

PP # A 8

ot K AT B et Bt
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EARKL FHIE
VNEMI VNI

459.51 2,561.74
1,742,937,646.33 1,383,397,731.13
165,469,350.00 318,678,230.00
1,080,300,000.00 1,212,000,000.00
1,003,661,720.73  268,970,919.90
1,041,877.88 1,288,372.24
9,952,777.48 8,550,404.00
11,988,303.68 5,529,120.84
6,686,815.13 -
20,034,913.21 12,332,691.56

4,042,073,863.94 3,210,750,031.41

1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
44,966,409.60  39,503,162.77
(46,319.58) :
33,316,907.91  21,077,745.89
257,226,613.99  200,389,065.03

1,335,463,611.92 1,260,969,973.69

5,377,537,475.86 4,471,720,005.10
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77,173,699.97
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13,176,524.70

22,080,008.28 8,324,225.70
21,495,893.20 10,862,969.88
52,659,848.32 1,562,820.31
50,508,392.30 1,789,166.55
1,567,340.94 2,312,397.94
212,308.55 4,829,993.30
1,791,056.54 4,831,371.80
1,578,747.99 1,378.50
27,402.54 22,305.70
41,382,700.25 29,796,707.07
1,265,499.83 733,147.40

40,117,200.42

29,063,559.67

(19,062,980.88)

(16,620,182.37)

57,586.59  1,153,714.09
33.59 ;

(19,005,427.88)  (15,466,468.28)

902,061.65 3,467,630.52

(19,907,489.53)

(18,934,098.80)

(213,813.78)

(20,121,303.31)

(18,934,098.80)
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL
(CHINA) LIMITED

Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2011

The financial statements and auditors’ report have been issued in Chinese. The English translation is prepared for your
reference only. If there is any conflict of meaning between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version prevails.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

De Shi Bao (Shen) Zi (12) No.P
[Translation]

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Morgan Stanley Bank International
(China) Limited (the "Bank™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2011, and the
income statement, the statement of changes in owner's equity and the cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements.

1. Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements. This responsibility includes: (1) preparing the financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises to achieve fair presentation of the financial
statements; (2) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control that is necessary to
enable the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

2. Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with the Code of Ethics for Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider the internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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3. Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Bank present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2011, and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. Chinese Certified Public Accountant
Shanghai, China

April 12" 2012
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BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

ASSETS
Balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Placements with banks and

other financial institutions

Financial assets held for trading
Interest receivable
Loans and advances to customers
Investment property
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

131

Notes

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

31/12/2011
RMB

528,706,078.17
370,676,314.69

2,196,956,700.00
1,755,557,401.00
33,172,065.33
728,143,511.04
18,852,614.00
6,481,657.80
5,458,379.62

24,892,541.24

31/12/2010
RMB

264,850,689.42
228,248,324.53

666,227,000.00
2,529,763,390.00
25,013,920.47
968,681,000.00
19,488,787.00
7,958,323.63
5,196,693.32
4,155,439.36
37,247,503.00

5,668,897,262.89 4,756,831,070.73

(Continued)
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LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions
Placements from banks and

other financial institutions

Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Employee benefit payable
Current tax payable
Interest payable
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OWNER'S EQUITY
Paid-in capital
Surplus reserves
Capital reserves
General reserves
Retained earnings

TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY

Notes

18

19
20
21
22
23
24
16
25

26
27
28
29
30

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB

476,982,076.68 173,175,536.74

165,469,350.00 318,678,230.00
1,080,300,000.00 1,212,000,000.00
2,600,129,771.29 1,785,769,494.51
5,734,998.22 4,752,102.11
11,146,952.69  12,026,380.39
16,969,678.60 7,204,459.50
6,615,543.87 -
21,150,214.17  13,198,525.03

4,384,498,585.52 3,526,804,728.28

1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
44,966,409.60  39,503,162.77
(260,133.36) -
33,316,907.91  21,077,745.89
206,375,493.22  169,445,433.79

1,284,398,677.37 1,230,026,342.45

5,668,897,262.89 4,756,831,070.73

The financial statements on pages 3 to 60 were signed by the following:

Head of the Bank
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INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Operating income
Net interest income
Interest income
Interest expenses
Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Investment income/ (loss)

Gain/ (losses) from changes in fair value
Exchange gains/(losses)

Other operating income

Operating expenses

Business tax and surcharges
Operating expenses
Impairment loss

Operating profit

Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Less: Income tax expenses

NET PROFIT

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes

31
31
31
32

32
32

33
34

35

36
37
38

39
40

41

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.

2011 2010

RMB RMB
156,227,961.08  148,761,061.04
77,422,604.76  59,889,122.09
226,040,893.56  93,807,794.60
148,618,288.80  33,918,672.51
84,949,077.55  91,514,563.36
89,785,730.15  99,151,870.52
4,836,652.60  7,637,307.16
(28,154,695.62)  9,635,143.22
41,819,397.30  (21,791,297.75)
(21,015,394.43)  8,306,558.60
1,206,971.52  1,206,971.52
84,379,110.16  75,406,326.35

14574,158.61  10,897,977.15
61,984,666.59  64,508,349.20
7,820,284.96 :
71,848,850.92  73,354,734.69
32991310  1,155842.92
39,832.12 357,249.37
72,138,931.90  74,153,328.24
17,506,463.62  15,913,727.07
54,632,468.28  58,239,601.17
(260,133.36) -
54,372,334.92  58,239,601.17
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Cash flow from operating activities

Net decrease in balances with the Central Bank and due from banks
Net decrease in loans and advances to customers
Net increase in customers deposits,
due to banks and other financial institutions
Net increase in placements from banks,
and other financial institutions
Net increase in repurchase agreements
Interest, fee and commission received
Other cash received relating to operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

Net increase in balances with the Central Bank and due from banks
Net increase in loans and advances to customers
Net decrease in placements from banks,
and other financial institutions
Net increase in placements with banks and other financial institutions
Net decrease in repurchase agreements
Interest, fee and commission paid
Cash paid to and for employees
Tax payments
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities
Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investments
Investment income received
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

Cash paid to purchase fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash paid to purchase investments

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities
Net cash flow from investing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 43
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 43

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.

Notes

2011 2010
RMB RMB
- 2,058,264.44
233,182,504.00 -
1,118,166,816.72  1,673,549,624.75
- 257,224,430.00
- 302,000,000.00
203,953,313.71 96,824,631.02
2,705,116.85 331,948,000.29
1,558,007,751.28  2,663,604,950.50
448,640,255.94

153,208,880.00
173,207,200.00
131,700,000.00
143,689,722.30
31,559,464.86
22,281,621.19
26,298,125.34

700,046,362.18

66,227,000.00

35,199,550.37
31,438,089.06
42,883,150.20
312,319,810.85

1,130,585,269.63

1,188,113,962.66

427,422,481.65  1,475490,987.84
2,102,260,729.30  100,000,000.00
97,691,076.39 71,800,866.57
63,050.24 25,935.03
2,200,014,855.93 171,826,801.60
4,072,259.46 3,263,968.86
1,285,599,170.00  1,054,983,273.22
1,289,671,429.46  1,058,247,242.08
910,343,426.47  (886,420,440.48)
(22,195,085.15)  (10,236,919.04)
1,315,570,822.97  578,833,628.28

1,060,423,815.99
2,375,994,638.96

481,590,187.71
1,060,423,815.99
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNER’S EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

1. Balance as at 31 December 2010
and 1 January 2011
I1. Current year movement
(1) Net profit
(1) Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Subtotal of (1) and (1)

(111) Distribution of profit
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general reserves

111. Balance as at 31 December 2011

1. Balance as at 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010
. Current year movement
(1) Net profit
(1) Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Subtotal of (1) and (I1)

(111) Distribution of profit
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general reserves

111. Balance as at 31 December 2010

2011
Paid in capital Surplus reserves capital reserves General reserves Retained earnings ~ Total owner’s equity
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 28) (Note 29) (Note 30)
1,000,000,000.00 39,503,162.77 - 21,077,745.89 169,445,433.79 1,230,026,342.45
- 5,463,246.83 (260,133.36) 12,239,162.02 36,930,059.43 54,372,334.92
- - - 54,632,468.28 54,632,468.28
- (260,133.36) - (260,133.36)
- (260,133.36) 54,632,468.28 54,372,334.92
5,463,246.83 - 12,239,162.02 (17,702,408.85)
5,463,246.83 - - (5,463,246.83)
- - 12,239,162.02 (12,239,162.02) -
1,000,000,000.00 44,966,409.60 (260,133.36) 33,316,907.91 206,375,493.22 1,284,398,677.37
2010
Paid in capital Surplus reserves capital reserves General reserves Retained earnings ~ Total owner’s equity
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 28) (Note 29) (Note 30)
1,000,000,000.00 33,679,202.65 - 8,403,791.24 129,703,747.39 1,171,786,741.28
- 5,823,960.12 - 12,673,954.65 39,741,686.40 58,239,601.17
- - - 58,239,601.17 58,239,601.17
- - 58,239,601.17 58,239,601.17
5,823,960.12 - 12,673,954.65 (18,497,914.77)
5,823,960.12 - - (5,823,960.12)
- - 12,673,954.65 (12,673,954.65) -
1,000,000,000.00 39,503,162.77 - 21,077,745.89 169,445,433.79 1,230,026,342.45

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

1. GENERAL

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited (the “Bank”), formerly known as Nan Tung
Bank Ltd., Zhuhai, was approved by the People’s Bank of China ( “PBOC”) and established on 19
October 1984, with an original operating period of 20 years, by Nan Tung Investment (Macao)
Limited which is wholly-owned by Bank of China Macau Branch. The Bank had a registered
capital of RMB 300 million, and obtained its business license on 14 December 1984. The Bank
mainly engaged in a full scope of foreign currency services to foreign entities, foreign invested
companies, foreign representative offices, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan representative offices in
China, foreigners and Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan natives and partial foreign currency services to
non-foreign invested companies.

The Bank increased its registered capital by RMB 100 million to RMB 400 million on 22 August
2002 with the approval of the PBOC. The Bank was approved to engage in full-scope foreign
currency business in November 2002.

The Bank renewed its business license (Qi-Du-Yue-Zong-Zi N0.003414) on 2 September 2004,
the operating period was extended from 14 December 1984 to 14 December 2024.

With the approval from the China Banking Regulatory Commission ( “CBRC”) on 8 September
2006, Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited (“MSBI’") took over 100% equity interest of the
Bank from Nan Tung Investment (Macao) Limited. The Bank obtained a new business license
(Qi-Du-Yue-Zong-Zi No.003573) after the change of shareholder on 21 September 2006, and the
operating period remained the same.

On 2 April 2007, MSBI injected RMB 600 million, the registered and paid-in capital of the Bank
increased to RMB 1 billion. With the approval from CBRC, the Bank changed its name to Morgan
Stanley Bank International (China) Limited on 14 May 2007. On 17 July 2007, with the approval
from CBRC, the Bank was approved to engage in Renminbi Dollars (“RMB”) business provided
to customers other than Chinese citizens within the territory of China and obtained a new business
license (register no. 440000400000859) on 19 July 2007. As of 31 December 2007, the registered
capital of the Bank is RMB 1 billion, the capital for RMB business is RMB 250 million and for
foreign currency business is Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) equivalent of RMB 750 million.

In June 2008, with the approval from State Administration of Foreign Exchange (“SAFE”), the
Bank converted HKD281,477,395.13 capital for foreign currency business to RMB 250 million
capital for RMB business. As of 31 December 2009, the total registered capital of the Bank is
RMB 1 billion, including RMB 500 million for RMB business and HKD equivalent of RMB 500
million for foreign currency business.

In January 2010, with the approval from SAFE, the Bank converted HKD167,803,891.84 capital
for foreign currency business to RMB 166 million capital for RMB business. As of 31 December
2011, the total registered capital of the Bank is RMB 1 billion, including RMB 666 million for
RMB business and HKD equivalent of RMB 334 million for foreign currency business. Details of
capital contribution by the investor are described in note 26.
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1. GENERAL - continued

The Bank was approved by CBRC on 10 June 2009 to establish a branch in Beijing and obtained
a branch business licence on 24 June 2009, with operating period from 24 June 2009 to 14
December 2024.

The registered address of the Bank is Room 2801-2807 and Room 2816, 28/F, Yuecai Building
No0.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai, Guangdong, People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The Bank
is formed as a limited liability company.

The Bank is permitted to provide the following services to any customers for foreign currency
business and to customers except for China citizens in the territory of China for RMB business:
accept public deposits; providing short-term, medium and long-term loans; undertaking
acceptance and discounting of negotiable instruments; buying and selling government bonds,
financial bonds, and other foreign currency securities except for shares; providing letters of credit
(L/C) service and guarantee; conducting domestic and international settlements; buying and
selling foreign currency for its own accounts or as agents; inter-bank borrowing and lending;
providing bank card service; providing safety box service; providing credit investigation and
consultancy service; and other businesses approved by CBRC.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bank has adopted the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry
of Finance on 15 February 2006 (hereinafter referred to as "new CASs").

3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS
ENTERPRISES

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with new CASs, and
present truly and completely, the Bank's financial position as of 31 December 2011, and results of
operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The following significant accounting policies and accounting estimates are determined in
accordance with the new CASs.

Accounting year

The Bank has adopted the calendar year as its accounting year, i.e. from 1 January to 31
December.

Functional currency

The Bank's functional currency is RMB, the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Bank operates. The reporting currency of the financial statements is RMB.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Basis of accounting and principle of measurement

The Bank has adopted the accrual basis of accounting. Except for investment property and certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value, the Bank has adopted the historical cost as
the principle of measurement of the financial statements. Where assets are impaired, provisions
for asset impairment are made in accordance with relevant requirements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and the deposits which can be paid on demand. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial instruments

The Bank recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when the Bank becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised at fair value. For financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair
value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), related transaction costs are charged to the profit or loss
for the current period; for financial assets and financial liabilities classified as other categories,
related transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amounts.

Determination of financial instruments fair value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The Bank chooses the quoted prices
from an active market if there is an active market for the financial instrument. If no active market
exists for a financial instrument, the Bank establishes fair value by using a valuation technique.
Valuation techniques include using recent market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

The effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period, using the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates the future cash flows considering
all contractual terms of financial assets and financial liabilities (without considering future credit
losses). The calculation includes all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified into the following categories: FVTPL,
‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘loans and receivables’ and “available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial
assets. For a financial asset traded in regular way, the Bank recognizes and derecognizes the
financial asset using trade date accounting.

The Bank’s financial assets are financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables and AFS
financial assets.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL. The Bank's FVTPL is held for trading purpose.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: (1) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or (2) it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or (3) it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a designated and
effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted price from an
active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Held for trading financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value as well as dividends and interest income related to such
financial assets recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables of the Bank include balances with
PBOC, due from banks, placements with banks and other financial institutions, loans and
advances to customers, interest receivable and other receivables etc.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains or losses arising from derecognition, impairment or amortisation are recognized in
profit or loss for the current period.

139
-11-



JEERR A [ BT (P ) A R 7
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets - continued

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale or are not classified as (1) financial assets at FVTPL, (2) loans and receivables, and (3)
held-to-maturity investments.

AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value (other than impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses resulted from
foreign currency monetary assets which are recognised in profit or loss for the current period) are
recognised directly in owner’s equity, and are reversed and recognised in profit or loss for the
period when such financial assets are derecognised.

Interest received during the period in which the Bank holds the AFS financial assets and cash
dividends declared by the investee are recognised as investment income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses the carrying amount of financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, at each
balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence that financial assets are impaired the Bank
determines the amount of any impairment loss. Objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired refers to one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and
that event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset which can be
reliably estimated.

Obijective evidences that financial assets are impaired includes evidences arising from the

following events:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(2) A breach of contract by the borrower, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(3) The lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting a concession to the borrower;

(4) It has become probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

(5) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties
of the issuer;

(6) Upon an overall assessment of a group of financial assets, observable data indicates that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the Bank of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the Bank. Such observable data includes:

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the Bank;
- adverse changes in industry or country conditions of the borrowers that might affect the
repayment of the Bank of financial assets;

(7) Other objective evidence indicating there is an impairment of a financial asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

I financial assets carried at amortised cost are impaired, the carrying amount of the financial
assets shall be reduced to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The amount of reduction shall be recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss. If,
after the recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of financial assets increases and
the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment losses are reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the financial assets at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the Bank assesses the asset individually for
impairment. For a financial asset that is not individually significant, the Bank assesses the asset
individually for impairment or includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. For a financial asset that does
not need impairment after individual assessment (include individually significant and
non-significant financial assets), the Bank reassesses the asset collectively with a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics for impairment. The financial asset that has
impaired in individual assessment does not need to be included in collectively assessment for
impairment with a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics.

Impairment of AFS financial assets

Where AFS financial assets are impaired, accumulated losses due to decreases in fair value
previously recognised directly in owner's equity are reversed and charged to profit or loss for the
current period. The reversed accumulated losses are the asset's initial acquisition costs after
deducting amounts recovered and amortised, current fair value and impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the carrying amount of financial assets increases and the increase can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment losses are reversed. The reversal of impairment losses of AFS equity
instruments is recognised in equity, and the impairment losses of AFS debt instruments are
recognised in profit or loss for the current period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Transfers of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when: (1) the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; or (2) it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the transferee; or (3) it transfers the financial asset,
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership but has not
retained control of the financial asset.

Where the Bank does not either transfer or retain substantially all of the risks and rewards related
to the ownership of a financial asset, and if the Bank does not relinquish control over the financial
asset, it shall, to the extent of its continuous involvement in the financial asset, recognize it as a
related financial asset and recognize the relevant liability accordingly. The term "continuous
involvement in the transferred financial asset"” shall refer to the risk level that the Bank faces as a
result of any change in the value of the financial asset.

If the transfer of an entire financial asset satisfies the conditions relating to derecognition, the
difference between the amounts described in the following two items shall be recorded in the
profit or loss for the current period: 1) the book value of the transferred financial asset; and 2) the
sum of the total consideration received from the transfer and the cumulative amount of the change
in the fair value originally recorded in the owner's equity.

If the transfer of part of a financial asset satisfies the conditions for derecognition, the Bank shall
allocate the carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognize under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognize on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts (under such circumstances, the service asset retained shall be deemed to be a
portion of the financial asset which continues to be recognized). And the difference between the
amounts described in the following two items shall be recorded in the profit or loss for the current
period: 1) the book value of the derecognized portion; and 2) the sum of the total consideration
paid for the derecognized portion and the portion of the cumulative amount of changes in the fair
value originally recorded in the owner's equity which corresponds to the derecognized portion (in
the event that the financial asset involved in the transfer is a financial asset available for sale).

A financial asset which sold with an agreement to repurchase in the near future, the Bank
continues to recognize it in the balance sheet. Proceeds from sales of such assets including the
interest are recognized as financial assets sold under repurchase agreement in the balance sheet.
The difference between selling price and repurchase price at the duration of the agreement is
recognized by the effective interest method as interest expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

The Bank recognizes the issued financial instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments
according to the substance of the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and the
definition of financial liabilities or equity instruments.

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at “fair value
through profit or loss” (FVTPL) or ‘other financial liabilities’. The Bank's financial liabilities are
other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities linked to and which must be settled by delivery of an unquoted
equity instrument (without a quoted price in an active market) whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably are subsequently measured at cost. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method; gains or losses arising from
derecognition or amortisation are recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts between a guarantor and a debtee that when the debtor
defaults, the guarantor should perform his obligations. Financial guarantee contracts that are not
designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at the higher of the following two amounts: (1) the amount determined in
accordance with Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 13 — Contingencies; and (2)
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
principles set out in Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

An enterprise shall derecognise a financial liability (or part of it) only when the underlying
present obligation (or part of it) is discharged. An agreement between the Bank (an existing
borrower) and an existing lender to replace the original financial liability with a new financial
liability with substantially different terms shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

When the Bank derecognises a financial liability or a part of it, the Bank shall recognise the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the financial liability)
derecognised and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or new
financial liabilities assumed) in profit or loss for the period.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if, and
only if, the Bank has a currently enforceable legal right to set off the recognized amounts and
intends to settle on a net basis, or to realize an asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In all
other situations they are presented separately in the balance sheet and are not offset.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to generate rental income or for capital
appreciation or both. The Bank's investment property is a building for rent.

There is an active property market in the location in which the Bank’s investment property is
situated. The Bank can obtain the market price and other relevant information with respect to the
same or similar types of properties from the property market so as to reasonably estimate the fair
value of the investment property. As a result, the Bank has adopted the fair value model for the
subsequent measurement of investment property, and the difference between the fair value and the
original carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

The Bank refers the market price and relevant information with respect to the same or similar
types of properties from the property market to determine the fair value of investment property.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the Bank recognizes the
amount of any proceeds on disposal net of the carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss
for the current period.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for supply of services, or for administrative purposes
and have useful lives more than one accounting year. A fixed asset shall be recognised only when
it is probable that economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. A fixed asset is initially measured at cost.

Subsequent expenditure incurred on a fixed asset is included in the cost of the fixed asset, only if
it is probable that economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Bank and the
relevant cost can be measured reliably. Meanwhile the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. Other subsequent expenditure that fails to meet the capitalization criteria is charged
to profit or loss when incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of each category of fixed assets over their estimated
useful lives from the month after they are brought to working condition for the intended use, using
the straight-line method. The useful lives, estimated net residual values rates and annual
depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated Net Annual
Classes Useful Life Residual Value Depreciation Rate
Motor vehicles Syears 10% 18%
Office equipment Syears - 20%

Estimated net residual value of a fixed asset is the estimated amount that the Bank would
currently obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the
asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Fixed assets - continued

The carrying amount of a fixed asset shall be derecognised when the asset is on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to be generated from its use or disposal. When a fixed
asset is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the Bank recognizes the amount of any proceeds on
disposal of the asset net of the carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the current
period.

The Bank reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value of a fixed asset and the
depreciation method applied at least at each financial year-end. A change in the useful life or
estimated net residual value of a fixed asset or the depreciation method used is accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Bank include software.

An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. An intangible asset with a finite useful life is
amortised using the straight-line method over its useful life when the asset is available for use. An
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortised.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the Bank reviews the useful life and amortisation
method at least at each financial year-end and makes changes if necessary.

Long-term prepayments

Long-term prepayments are various expenditures incurred but that should be allocated over the
current and future periods of more than one year. Long-term prepayments are evenly amortized
over their respective beneficial period.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that fixed assets and
intangible assets with finite useful life may be impaired. If any indication that an asset may be
impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount on impaired asset is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Bank determines the recoverable
amount of the asset group to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the difference is recognised
as an impairment loss and charged to profit or loss for the current period.

Once an impairment loss fixed assets and intangible assets with finite useful life is recognized, it
is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Employee benefits

In the accounting period in which the employee has rendered services, the Bank recognised the
employee benefits payables for those services as liability, except for the treatment of
compensations of employment termination.

The Bank participates in the social welfare system built by the government according to
regulations, including basic pension, medical insurance, housing accumulation fund and other
social welfare systems. Relevant expenses will be recorded in the profit and loss at the time of
occurrence.

For the Bank's defined benefit plan, liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate that reflects the current rate of return on a
high quality bond of equivalent term and currency to the defined benefit obligation. The current
service cost, past service cost and the unwinding of the discount on defined benefit obligation are
charged to current expenses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

When the Bank terminates the employment relationship with employees before the end of the
employment contracts or provides compensation as an offer to encourage employees to accept
voluntary redundancy, if the Bank has a formal plan for termination of employment relationship
or has made an offer for voluntary redundancy which will be implemented immediately, and at the
same time the Bank cannot unilaterally withdraw from the termination plan or the redundancy
offer, a provision is recognised for the compensation arising from termination of employment
relationship with employees, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current
period.

General reserves

Pursuant to CAIJIN [2005] No. 49 "Measures on General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts
for Financial Institutions" issued by the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) and the related regulations,
financial institution should base on assets at the balance sheet date that bear risk and loss, which
include loans (e.g. collaterlized loans, pledged loans, guaranteed loans), bank card overdraft,
discount, credit advances (e.g. bank acceptance bill advances, letter of credit advances, guarantee
advances), export-import bills, equity investment and debt investment (excluding securities which
adopt lower of cost or market method or fair value method to determine the value at end of period
and principal and interest of treasury bonds purchased for investment), placements with banks and
other financial institutions, due from banks, interest receivable (excluding interest receivable of
loans and placements with banks and other financial institutions), dividend receivable, lease
payments receivable and other receivables. In principle, the general reserves should be provided at
not less than 1% of the risk assets from net profits as part of the owner's equity.

The Bank provides 1% of risk assets balance at the balance sheet date as the general reserves
effective from 1 January 2006. The provision of general reserves is considered as the current
distribution of profits and presented separately in the owner's equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are determined at amortized costs of relevant financial assets and
financial liabilities using the effective interest rate, and recognised to profit or loss in the current
period. If the difference in amount between effective interest method and contract interest rate
method is small, the contract interest method is used.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income are recognized when the related services are delivered on an accrual
basis.

Government grants

Government grants are the transfer of monetary assets or non-monetary assets from the
Government to the Bank at no consideration. A government grant is recognised when the Bank
complies with the conditions attaching to the grant and when the Bank is able to receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, the item is measured at the
amount received or receivable.

A government grant which relates to an asset is recognised as deferred income, and evenly
amortised to profit or loss over the useful life of the related asset.

For a government grant which relates to income, if the grant is a compensation for related
expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognised as deferred
income, and recognised in profit or loss over the periods in which the related costs are recognised;
if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses already incurred, the grant is
recognised immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

Income tax

Income tax expenses comprise current tax expense and deferred tax expense.

Current tax

At the balance sheet date, the current income tax liabilities (or assets) for the current period or

previous periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid (or recoverable) according to the
requirements of tax law.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Income tax - continued

Deferred tax

Temporary differences arising from the difference between the carrying amount of an asset or
liability and its tax base, or the difference between the tax base and the carrying amount of those
items that are not recognised as assets or liabilities but have a tax base that can be determined
according to tax laws, are recognized as deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities using the
balance sheet liability method.

The Bank recognizes a deferred tax asset for the carry forward of unused deductible losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
according to the requirements of tax laws.

Current income tax and deferred tax is recognized in current year profit and loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equity, in which
case the current tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income or equity.

At the balance sheet date, the Bank reviews the carrying amount of any deferred tax asset. If it is
probable that sufficient taxable profits will not be available in future periods to allow the benefit
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized, the carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reduced.
Any such reduction in amount is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Tax asset and tax liability offset

When the Bank has a legal right to offset the recognized amounts and intends to either settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, tax asset and tax liability of
current period are offset and the net amount is presented on the balance sheet.

When the Bank has a legal right to offset the current income tax assets and current income tax
liabilities, the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity, or different taxable entities which
intend to either settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, are reported on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Translation of transactions denominated in foreign currencies

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated by applying the spot exchange
rate at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional
currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising
from the differences between the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date and the
exchange rates used on initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date are recognized in
profit or loss for the current period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are carried at historical cost
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; non-monetary assets and liabilities
carried at fair value and denominated in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Differences between the translated amount and the
original amount of functional currency are accounted for as changes in fair value (including
changes in exchange rates) in profit or loss for the period.

Leases
A financial leasing is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred. An operating lease is a

lease other than a finance lease.

The Bank records operating lease as lessee

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term to the cost of the assets or to profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.
Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in which they are actually incurred.

Fiduciary assets

The Bank provides fiduciary services to grant loans to the borrowers and collect the repayments
on behalf of the Bank’s clients. The fund is entrusted and the condition of credit, including the
usage of loan, the principle and the interest rates, are designated by the client. The risk of the
fiduciary loan is taken by the client, the Bank charges commission only for agency activities.
Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not reported in the Bank’s balance sheet.
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o. BASIS OF DETERMINING SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY
ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the application of the Bank’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 4, the Bank is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of items in
the financial statements that cannot be measured accurately. These judgments, estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience of the Bank's management as well as other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The aforementioned judgements, estimates and assumptions are reviewed regularly on a going
concern basis. The effect of a change in accounting estimate is recognized in the period of the
change, if the change affects that period only; or recognized in the period of the change and future
periods, if the change affects both current and future periods.

At each balance sheet date, the Bank makes following key judgements, estimates and
assumptions:

Fair value of financial assets

For the financial instrument without active trading market, the Bank determines its fair value by
various valuation techniques. The valuation techniques that the Bank adopts include discounted
cash flow model. The Bank needs to make estimation such as the credit risks, market volatility
and correlation of itself and counterparties. Any changes in the assumptions made will impact the
fair values of the financial instruments.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

Besides the loan loss provision provided before each quarter-end, the Bank reviews its loan
portfolios to assess impairment on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be provided, the Bank makes judgments as to whether there is any objective evidence that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from loan portfolios if there is no
such decrease identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. The objective evidence may
include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a Bank (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the Bank. The Bank uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Income tax

There are a number of transactions for which the final tax determination and calculation is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business operation. In particular, the deductibility of
certain items is subjected to government approval. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amount that was initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period during which such a determination is made.
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S. BASIS OF DETERMINING SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY
ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the assets are realized or the liabilities are settled, according to the requirements of
tax laws. Within the limit of sufficient available taxable profits against which the loss can be
deductible, the Bank recognizes deferred tax assets against the deductible losses. This requires
management judgment to estimate the time of taxable profits and appropriate tax rate to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

6. TAXATION

Income tax

According to “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China” (hereinafter called
as the “New Enterprise Income Tax Law”) issued on March 2007, the Bank is subjected to New
Enterprise Income Tax Law and relevant regulations effective from 1 January 2008.

According to “Notice on Implication of Enterprise Income Tax Transitional Preferential Tax
Policy Issued by the State Council” (Guo fai [2007] No. 39), the enterprises which entitle to the
preferential tax policy of the old tax law, regulation and other legal documents, will entitle to the
transitional preferential tax policy: From 1 January 2008, the tax rate of the enterprises which
entitle to the low preferential tax policy are allowed to transit to statutory tax rate gradually in 5
years after the implementation of New Enterprise Income Tax Law. The applicable tax rates are
that the enterprises which use 15% tax rate will implement 18% tax rate in year 2008, 20% tax
rate in year 2009, 22% tax rate in year 2010, 24% tax rate in year 2011, and 25% tax rate in year
2012. The Bank’s Zhuhai Head office belongs to the enterprises entitling to the preferential tax
policy mentioned above. The applicable tax rate for year 2011 is 24% (2010: 22%). The above
transitional preferential tax policy is not applicable to the Bank’s Beijing Branch.

Business tax
The business tax rate is 5%.
Other tax

According to the "Circular of the State Council on Extending the Urban Maintenance and
Construction Tax and Education Surcharges to Foreign Enterprises and Nationals (Guofa [2010]
No. 35)" and Circular on Levying Urban Maintenance and Construction Tax and Education
Surcharge (CaiShui [2010] No.103), the Bank is liable for paying Urban Maintenance and
Construction Tax and Education Surcharge at the rate of 7% and 3% for their turnover tax liability
that occurs on or after 1 December 2010.

According to YueFuBan[2011] No. 10, the Head Office in Zhuhai of the Bank is obliged to pay
for Local Education Surcharge at the rate of 2% of the business tax since 1 January 2011.
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7.

BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Statutory reserves with the Central Bank 481,315,453.90 32,675,197.96
Other deposits with the Central Bank 47,390,624.27  232,175,491.46

528,706,078.17  264,850,689.42

Statutory reserves are placed according to the relevant regulations promulgated by the PBOC. In
accordance with “Notice on Raising Reserve Rate for Foreign Currency Deposits Issued by the
People’s Bank of China” [YinFa(2007)No.134], reserve rate for all foreign currency deposits of
financial institutions was adjusted to 5% effective 15 May 2007. Statutory reserve for foreign
currency business is deposited at 5% of the month-end balances of the relevant deposit items.
Statutory reserve for foreign currency business is non-interest bearing. The PBOC reserve rate for
all RMB deposits of financial institutions was 19.0% and 16.5% on 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010 respectively. Statutory reserve for RMB business is based on the RMB deposit
balance at the end of each ten days.
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8.

10.

11.

DUE FROM BANKS

Due from domestic banks
Due from overseas banks

Total

Less: Provision of impairment of due from banks
-collective assessment

Net book value

PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Placements with domestic financial institutions

FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING

Bonds
- Government bonds and PBOC bills
- Financial institution bonds
- Corporate bonds

Total

31/12/2011
RMB

307,891,873.44
63,189,641.25

31/12/2010
RMB

5,354,311.69
222,894,012.84

371,081,514.69

228,248,324.53

235,007,650.00

405,200.00 -
370,676,314.69  228,248,324.53
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
2,196,956,700.00  666,227,000.00
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
377,868,776.00  211,599,030.00

1,142,680,975.00 2,219,114,360.00

99,050,000.00

1,755,557,401.00 2,529,763,390.00

As of balance sheet date, the face value of financial assets held for trading RMB1,130,300,000
(2010: RMB1,220,000,000) have been pledged for repurchase agreements (note 20). These

repurchase agreements will be matured within 1 month from contract value date.

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

(1) Movement in interest receivable is as follows:

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Received during the year

Closing balance

153

31/12/2011
RMB

25,013,920.47
226,040,893.56

(217,882,748.70)

31/12/2010
RMB

17,287,586.56
93,807,794.60
(86,081,460.69)

33,172,065.33

25,013,920.47
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11. INTEREST RECEIVABLE - continued

(2) Categorized by nature is as follows:

Interest receivable from
- Balances with the Central Bank and due from banks
- Placements with banks and other financial institutions

- Loans and advances to customers
- Financial assets held for trading

Total

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(1) Categorized by nature is as follows:

Corporate loans and advances
Less: Loan loss provision

Net book value

(2) Categorized by industry are as follows:

31/12/2011
RMB

Manufacturing -
Wholesale and retail 185,498,496.00
Metals mining 200,000,000.00
Power production and supply ~ 100,000,000.00
Agriculture industry -
Construction industry 250,000,000.00
Total 735,498,496.00
Less: Loan loss provision 7,354,984.96

Net book value 728,143,511.04
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31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
645,753.39 71,288.86
3,668,166.40 1,462,982.93
8,630,547.00 4,551,751.84
20,227,598.54 18,927,896.84
33,172,065.33 25,013,920.47
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
735,498,496.00 968,681,000.00
7,354,984.96 -
728,143,511.04 968,681,000.00
Proportion 31/12/2010 Proportion
(%) RMB (%)

- 100,000,000.00 10.32
25.22 298,681,000.00 30.83
27.19 200,000,000.00 20.65
13.60 100,000,000.00 10.32

- 100,000,000.00 10.32
33.99 170,000,000.00 17.56

100.00 968,681,000.00 100.00
968,681,000.00
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12.

13.

LOAN AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS - continued

(3) Categorized by registered location of the borrowers are as follows:

31/12/2011 Proportion 31/12/2010 Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Northern China 644,513,500.00 87.63 868,681,000.00 89.68
Southern China 90,984,996.00 12.37 - -
Eastern China - 100,000,000.00 10.32
Total 735,498,496.00 100.00 968,681,000.00 100.00
Less: Loan loss provision 7,354,984.96 -
Net book value 728,143,511.04 968,681,000.00
(4) Categorized by contract agreement terms and guarantee pattern are as follows:
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Within a year 1yearto 5 years Within a year 1yearto5 years
(including 1year) ~ (including 5 years) Over 5 years Total (including 1year) (including 5 years) — Over 5 years Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Clean loans 300,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 700,000,000.00
Guarantee loans 50,000,000.00 - 50,000,000.00 70,000,000.00 - 70,000,000.00
Collateralized loans 185,498,496.00 185,498,496.00 198,681,000.00 198,681,000.00
ielude: Pledged loans 185,498,496.00 185,498,496.00 198,681,000.00 198,681,000.00
Total 535,498,496.00 200,000,000.00 735,498,496.00 768,681,000.00  200,000,000.00 968,681,000.00
Less: Loan loss provision 7,354,984.96
Net book value 728,143,511.04 968,681,000.00
INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Building
RMB
Opening fair value 19,488,787.00

Change in fair value during the year

Closing fair value

(636,173.00)

18,852,614.00

The investment property of the Bank is a building, valued at fair value. The fair value is based on
an active market price, and adjusted according to the specific asset's situation, location and
conditions if necessary. The Bank's investment property is not pledged.
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14.

15.

FIXED ASSETS

Cost
Opening balance
Addition during the year
Disposal during the year

Closing balance

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance
Charge for the year
Disposal during the year

Closing balance

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software

Cost
Opening balance
Addition during the year

Closing balance
Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

RMB
251,665.98

251,665.98

RMB

14,806,420.22
1,594,356.63
618,411.54

Total
RMB

15,058,086.20
1,594,356.63
870,077.52

15,782,365.31

15,782,365.31

162,324.57
37,749.90
200,074.47

6,937,438.00
2,942,632.53
579,363.02

7,099,762.57
2,980,382.43
779,437.49

9,300,707.51

9,300,707.51

89,341.41

7,868,982.22

7,958,323.63

6,481,657.80

6,481,657.80
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RMB

9,086,575.55
2,150,691.10

11,237,266.65

3,889,882.23
1,889,004.80

5,778,887.03

5,196,693.32

5,458,379.62
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16.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(1)

)

3)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed in gross as follows:

Deductible temporary differences Deferred tax assets
31/12/2011 31/12/2010 31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB RMB RMB

Long-term service benefit&employee

benefit 2,913,822.30 1,230,340.16 728,455.58 295,281.64
Intangible asset amortization

difference between tax and

accounting 2,889,443.47 1,944,941.06 722,360.87 486,235.27
Change in fair value of
financial assets held for trading  4,940,989.70 47,396,560.00 1,235,247.43 11,375,174.40
Nondeductible accrual expenses 3,150,450.00 3,311,350.00 787,612.50 794,724.00
Total 13,894,705.47 53,883,191.22 3,473,676.38 12,951,415.31
Taxable temporary differences Deferred tax liabilities
31/12/2011 31/12/2010 31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Change in fair value of
investment property 18,852,614.00 19,488,787.00 4,713,153.50 4,872,196.75
Impairment on financial assets 21,504,267.00 16,349,080.00 5,376,066.75 3,923,779.20
Total 40,356,881.00 35,837,867.00 10,089,220.25 8,795,975.95

The Bank nets off deferred tax assets and liabilities and presents in net basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed net as follows:

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Deferred tax assets 3,473,676.38 12,951,415.31
Deferred tax liabilities (10,089,220.25)  (8,795,975.95)
Net total (6,615,543.87) 4,155,439.36

The New Enterprises Income Tax Law is implemented from 1 January 2008. According to
“Notice on Implementation of Enterprise Income Tax Transitional Preferential Tax Policy
Issued by the State Council” (Guo fai [2007] No. 39), the enterprises which entitled to the
preferential tax policy of the old tax law, regulation and other legal documents, will entitle
to the transitional preferential tax policy: From 1 January 2008, the tax rate of the
enterprises which entitle to the low preferential tax policy are allowed to transit to
statutory tax rate gradually in 5 years after the implementation of New Enterprises Income
Tax Law. The applicable tax rate are that the enterprises which use 15% tax rate will
implement 18% tax rate in year 2008, 20% tax rate in year 2009, 22% tax rate in year
2010, 24% tax rate in year 2011, and 25% tax rate in year 2012. The Bank’s Head Office
belongs to the enterprises entitling to the preferential tax policy mentioned above. The
applicable tax rate for year 2011 is 24% (2010: 22%). The preferential tax policy
mentioned above is not applicable to the Bank’s Beijing Branch.
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17.

OTHER ASSETS

Security deposits

Prepaid expenses

Long-term prepayments (1)
Consulting fee receivables
Intangible assets prepayments (2)
Others

Total

Less: Provision of losses of receivables

Net book value

(1) Long-term prepayments

Leasehold Improvement

Cost
Opening balance
Addition during the year
Transfer out during the year
Disposal during the year

Closing balance

Amortisation
Opening balance
Charge for the year
Disposal during the year

Closing balance

Net Book Value
Opening balance

Closing balance

31/12/2011
RMB

1,208,576.67
898,716.02
907,117.00
4,112,369.97
17,589,187.79
236,673.79

31/12/2010
RMB

1,024,953.61
679,777.65
4,566,236.30
26,242,976.84
4,526,814.13
206,744.47

24,952,641.24

37,247,503.00

60,100.00

24,892,541.24

37,247,503.00

RMB

12,614,896.33
327,211.73
(39,852.06)
(48,339.52)

12,853,916.48

8,048,660.03
3,946,478.97
(48,339.52)

11,946,799.48

4,566,236.30

907,117.00

(2) Intangible assets prepayments are expenditure incurred by the Bank for new IT systems which

is in development stage.
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18. DUE TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Due to domestic financial institutions 476,982,076.68 173,175,536.74

19. PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Placements from domestic banks 30,000,000.00 220,000,000.00
Placements from overseas banks 135,469,350.00 98,678,230.00
Total 165,469,350.00 318,678,230.00
20. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
Classified by collateralized assets:
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Bonds 1,080,300,000.00 1,212,000,000.00
21. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Current deposits
Corporate 71,137,152.01 68,445,698.62
Individual 106,031.63 1,718,236.45
Time deposits
Corporate 2,523,983,496.85 1,709,880,001.28
Individual 4,903,090.80 5,725,558.16

Total 2,600,129,771.29 1,785,769,494.51
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22,

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAYABLE

Accruals Payments
1/1/2011 for the year for the year 31/12/2011
RMB RMB RMB RMB

Salaries, bonuses,

allowances and subsidies 3,919,401.58 28,006,701.58 (28,005,328.46) 3,920,774.70
Staff welfare (1) 822,855.03 2,213,104.59 (1,276,845.29) 1,759,114.33
Social security contributions - 1,416,557.49 (1,361,448.30) 55,109.19
Housing funds - 635,810.00 (635,810.00) -
Compensation to employees

for termination of

employment 9,845.50 270,187.31 (280,032.81) -

Total 4,752,102.11 32,542,360.97 (31,559,464.86) 5,734,998.22

(1) Defined benefit plan ("DBP")

Included in staff welfare is a defined benefit plan, which is a private retirement and savings
plan set up for the Bank’s employees in addition to the government retirement plan. Monthly
contributions of the plan are accrued based on base salary with contribution rate of 8%. The
plan benefits are equal to the accrued contributions plus interest and are payable upon the
retirement or the resignation of the employees. Vesting percentage will have a 20% increase
for each full year of firm service, until 100% for 5 full years of firm services.

The Bank evaluates the present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation on an actuarial
basis. The present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation, current service cost and past

service cost are all measured at projected unit credit method.

(@) The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Discount rate
Rate of increase in salaries
Cash balance credit rate

Mortality rate
Withdrawal
Retirement age

160

2011/12/31 2010/12/31
3.30% 3.75%
7.00% 7.00%
3.30% 2.75%

2011 /12/31 and 2010/12/31

China Life Table 2000-2003
15%
65
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22. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAYABLE - continued
(1) Defined benefit plan ("DBP") - continued

(b) The amounts recognized in operating expenses in respect of DBP are as follows:

2011 2010

RMB RMB
Current service cost 740,927.38 877,062.00
Interest on obligation 24,680.56 -
Total 765,607.94 877,062.00

(c) Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan
assets included in employee benefit payable:

2011/12/31 2010/12/31
RMB RMB
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 1,759,114.30 822,855.03
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation - -
1,759,114.30 822,855.03
Net liability 1,759,114.30 822,855.03
Retirement benefit obligation 1,759,114.30 822,855.03

(d) Movement in the present value of DBP obligations were as follows:

2011 2010

RMB RMB
Opening 822,855.03 -
Current service cost 740,927.38 877,062.00
Interest cost 24,680.56 -
Actuarial losses 346,844.46 -
Benefits paid (176,193.13) (54,206.97)
Closing 1,759,114.30 822,855.03
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23.

24,

CURRENT TAX PAYABLE

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Corporate income tax 5,400,297.23 7,714,696.74
Business tax and surcharge 5,580,399.96 4,243,640.84
Individual income tax 36,320.94 60,677.35
Others 129,934.56 7,365.46
Total 11,146,952.69 12,026,380.39
INTEREST PAYABLE
(1) Movement in interest payable is as follows:
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Opening balance 7,204,459.50 848,030.20
Addition during the year 148,618,288.80 33,918,672.51
Payment during the year (138,853,069.70) (27,562,243.21)
Closing balance 16,969,678.60 7,204,459.50
(2) Categorized by nature is as follows:
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Interest payable from
- Customer deposits 9,784,665.71 2,534,976.83
- Due to banks and other financial institutions 4,325,709.82 1,201,061.94
- Placements from banks and other financial institutions  2,292,438.96 844,422.96
- Repurchase agreements 566,864.11 2,623,997.77
Total 16,969,678.60 7,204,459.50
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25.

26.

27.

OTHER LIABILITIES

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Security deposits 301,742.88 301,742.88
Accrued expenses 2,351,586.79 2,366,513.90
Deferred income 1,556,909.61 135,342.02
Other payables (1) 16,939,974.89 10,394,926.23
Total 21,150,214.17 13,198,525.03

(1) Other payables

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Payable for intangible assets purchases 11,466,965.76 4,626,684.45
Payable to related parties 3,180,400.44 3,442,064.44
Others 2,292,608.69 2,326,177.34
Total 16,939,974.89 10,394,926.23

PAID-IN CAPITAL

The registered capital of the Bank is RMB 1,000,000,000.00, and was fully paid up as of 31
December 2011. Details of capital contribution from the investor according to the Bank's articles
are as follows:
31/12/2011 & 31/12/2010
Original Currency  Proportion Amount
(%) RMB Equivalent

Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited RMB 67% 666,000,000.00
HKD 33% 334,000,000.00
1,000,000,000.00

The above paid-in capital had been verified by capital verification report (2002) Heng De Zhu
Yan Zi No. 72 and (2007) Heng De Zhu Yan Zi No. 11 issued by Guangdong Hengxin Delv
Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.

SURPLUS RESERVES

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Opening balance 39,503,162.77 33,679,202.65
Addition during the year 5,463,246.83 5,823,960.12
Closing balance 44,966,409.60 39,503,162.77
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28.

29.

30.

CAPITAL RESERVES

DBP revaluation reserve
Deferred tax effect of DBP revaluation reserve

Closing balance

GENERAL RESERVES

Opening balance
Addition during the year

Closing balance

RETAINED EARNINGS

Opening balance

Net profit for the year

Appropriation to surplus reserves (1)
Appropriation to general reserves (2)

Closing balance

(1) Surplus reserves

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
346,844.46 -
(86,711.10) -
260,133.36 -
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
21,077,745.89 8,403,791.24

12,239,162.02

12,673,954.65

33,316,907.91

21,077,745.89

31/12/2011
RMB

169,445,433.79
54,632,468.28
(5,463,246.83)

(12,239,162.02)

31/12/2010
RMB

129,703,747.39
58,239,601.17
(5,823,960.12)

(12,673,954.65)

206,375,493.22

169,445,433.79

According to the Board meeting resolution, the Bank appropriates 10% of profit after tax to
the surplus reserves effective year 2007 until the Board amends the distribution policy in the

future periods.

(2) General reserves

According to the Board meeting resolution, the Bank appropriates 1% general provisions to
general reserves based on total risk assets as of year-end balance effective year 2007 until the

Board amends the distribution policy in the future periods.
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31.

32.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income
- Due from banks
- Balances with the Central Bank
- Placements with banks and other financial institutions
- Financial assets held for trading
- Loans and advances to customers
- Available-for-sale financial assets

Subtotal

Interest expenses
- Due to banks and other financial institutions
- Placements from banks and other financial institutions
- Repurchase agreements
- Customer deposits

Subtotal

Net interest income

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
-Entrusted loans
-Arrangement fee for syndicated loans
-Consulting fee
-Settlement and clearing fee
-Agent business fee
-Fees related to credit business

-Guarantee fee income
-Others

Subtotal

Fee and commission expenses
-Syndicated loans
-Funding expenses
-Other fee expenses

Subtotal

Net fee and commission income
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2011
RMB

1,331,403.14
16,365,473.37
41,253,535.12
127,145,473.71
39,945,008.22

2010
RMB

2,366,095.36
1,710,776.71
2,864,229.79
61,410,790.82
22,030,951.92
3,424,950.00

226,040,893.56

93,807,794.60

7,358,118.23
14,349,153.10
42,730,286.45
84,180,731.02

1,201,071.01
5,216,650.50
22,093,109.92
5,407,841.08

148,618,288.80

33,918,672.51

77,422,604.76 59,889,122.09
2011 2010
RMB RMB
1,850,000.00 1,640,000.00
8,043,741.52 29,218,787.03
79,479,248.09 66,227,089.09
23,783.82 34,907.80
- 760.50
224,699.43 1,930,628.65
97,148.96 -
67,108.33 99,697.45

89,785,730.15

99,151,870.52

1,687,034.57 6,870,000.00
1,187,507.18 46,265.99
1,962,110.85 721,041.17
4,836,652.60 7,637,307.16

84,949,077.55

91,514,563.36
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33.  INVESTMENT INCOME/ (LOSS)

Disposal of financial assets held for trading

34. GAIN/(LOSSES) FROM CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE

Financial assets held for trading
Investment property

Total

35. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Investment property rental income

36. BUSINESS TAX AND SURCHARGES

Business tax
Surcharges

Total

166

2011 2010
RMB RMB
(28,154,695.62) 9,635,143.22
2011 2010
RMB RMB

42,455,570.30
(636,173.00)

(22,861,225.75)
1,069,928.00

41,819,397.30

(21,791,297.75)

2011 2010
RMB RMB
1,206,971.52 1,206,971.52
2011 2010
RMB RMB

12,848,086.25
1,726,072.36

10,717,871.22
180,105.93

14,574,158.61

10,897,977.15
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37.

38.

39.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Staff salaries and welfare

Operating lease rentals and utilities expenses
Long-term prepayments amortization
Electrical equipment maintenance fees
Depreciation

Intangible assets amortization
Travelling expenses

Service fees

Fees to regulators

Entertainment expenses

Taxes

Others

Total

IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Loans and advances to customers
Due from banks
Other receivables

Total

2011 2010
RMB RMB
32,542,360.97 29,353,313.42
6,223,675.00 6,701,715.85
3,946,478.97 6,026,325.00
5,296,101.66 5,610,792.02
2,980,382.43 2,687,761.43
1,889,004.80 1,804,779.91
1,631,423.29 1,073,836.45
1,200,000.00 4,511,350.00
699,846.34 572,344.77
357,140.02 271,373.49
179,265.59 205,185.64
5,038,987.52 5,689,571.22
61,984,666.59 64,508,349.20
2011 2010
RMB RMB
7,354,984.96 -
405,200.00 -
60,100.00 -
7,820,284.96 -

The Bank adopts significant estimates to provide relevant provision for impairment, with
reference to macro economy development and changes as well as similar-scale banks’ data of

collective assessment.

NON-OPERATING INCOME

Government grants

Rebate on fees from withholding tax
Gain from fixed assets disposal
Others

Total

167

2011 2010
RMB RMB
- 1,148,700.00
318,386.67 6,254.92
11,458.49 -
67.94 888.00
329,913.10 1,155,842.92
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40.

41.

42.

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

Loss from fixed assets disposal
Others

Total

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses

Deferred tax expenses

Adjustment for last year income tax
Include: Income tax expenses

Total

Reconciliation of income tax expenses to accounting profits is as follows:

Accounting profit
Tax calculated at Head Office tax rate 24%
in current year (22% in last year)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Estimated effect of tax rate change
Adjustment for regional tax rate difference
Adjustment for last year income tax
Non-taxable income

Income tax expenses

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSSES)

Actuarial losses recognised in DBP
Effect of DBP losses on deferred tax

Total

168

2011 2010
RMB RMB
39,048.28 357,106.44
783.84 142.93
39,832.12 357,249.37
2011 2010
RMB RMB
6,643,548.78  19,643,238.74
10,857,694.33 (3,912,738.73)
5,220.51 183,227.06
5,220.51 183,227.06
17,506,463.62  15,913,727.07
2011 2010
RMB RMB
72,138,931.90  74,153,328.24

17,313,343.66

16,313,732.21

303,395.92 305,940.50
92,651.73 (706,756.96)
61,001.98 416,115.67

5,220.51 183,227.06

(269,150.18)  (598,531.41)

17,506,463.62  15,913,727.07
2011 2010
RMB RMB

346,844.46 -
(86,711.10) -
260,133.36 -
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43.

44,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with the Central Bank
Statutory reserve
Original maturity within 3 months:
Due from banks
Placements with banks and

other financial institutions

Total

2011 2010
RMB RMB

528,706,078.17 264,850,689.42
(481,315,453.90) (32,675,197.96)

371,081,514.69 228,248,324.53

1,957,522,500.00 600,000,000.00
2,375,994,638.96 1,060,423,815.99

CASH FLOW STATEMENT SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities
Net profit
Add: Impairment loss
Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of long-term prepayments
Losses/(Gains) on disposal of fixed assets
Investment income/ (loss)
Bond interest income
Losses/ (Gains) from changes in fair value
Decrease/ (Increase) in deferred tax assets
Increase in operating receivables
Increase in operating payables

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash and cash equivalents net increase
Cash as at 31 December
Less: Cash as at 1 January
Add: Cash equivalents as at 31 December
Less: Cash equivalents as at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents net increase

169

2011 2010
RMB RMB

54,632,468.28 58,239,601.17

7,820,284.96 -
2,980,382.43 2,687,761.43
1,889,004.80 1,804,779.91
3,046,478.97 6,026,325.00
27,589.79 357,106.44
28,154,695.62 (9,635,143.22)

(127,145,473.71)  (64,835,740.82)
(41,819,397.30)  21,791,297.75
10,857,694.33 (3,912,738.73)
(386,887,652.58)  (782,028,682.85)
872,966,406.06  2,244,996,421.74

427,422,481.65 1,475,490,987.82

- 299,573.47
2,375,994,638.96  1,060,423,815.99
1,060,423,815.99 481,290,614.24

1,315,570,822.97 578,833,628.28
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45.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

According to the Bank's internal organizational structure, regulatory requirements and internal
reporting system, the Bank's businesses are divided into following reporting segments, which are
based on the Bank's operational location. The Bank's management periodically evaluates
operating results of these segments reporting to determine resources allocation and evaluates

operating results.

Information of segment reporting is disclosed based on the accounting policies and measurement
used when segments report is provided to the management. These measurement bases are
consistent with the accounting policies and measurement used when preparing the financial

Statements.

Segment report information:

2011
Head Office Beijing Branch Elimination Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Operating income 133,908,241.71 22,319,719.37 - 156,227,961.08
Net interest income 55,342,596.48 22,080,008.28 - 77,422,604.76
Include:
Net interest income
between segments (51,092,507.38) 51,092,507.38 - -

Net fee and commission income 84,736,769.00 212,308.55 - 84,949,077.55
Net other income (6,171,123.77) 27,402.54 - (6,143,721.23)
Operating expenses 42,996,409.91 41,382,700.25 - 84,379,110.16
Operating profit/(loss) 90,911,831.80 (19,062,980.88) - 71,848,850.92
Segment assets 5,377,537,475.86 2,135,412,719.49 (1,844,052,932.46) 5,668,897,262.89
Segment liabilities 4,035,387,048.82 2,086,548,925.30 (1,744,052,932.46) 4,377,883,041.66
Additional information:
Depreciation and amortization 4,804,472.91 4,011,393.29 - 8,815,866.20
Capital expenditures 3,991,660.46 80,599.00 - 4,072,259.46
Include: Expenditures on

purchasing fixed assets 1,513,757.63 80,599.00 - 1,594,356.63

Expenditures on
long-term prepayments 327,211.73 - - 327,211.73
Expenditures on
intangible assets 2,150,691.10 - - 2,150,691.10
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45,

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment report information: - continued

2010
Head Office Beijing Branch Elimination Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Operating income 135,584,536.34 13,176,524.70 - 148,761,061.04
Net interest income 51,564,896.39 8,324,225.70 - 59,889,122.09
Include:
Net interest income
between segments 749,577.63 (749,577.63) - -
Net fee and commission income 86,684,570.06 4,829,993.30 - 91,514,563.36
Net other income (2,664,930.11) 22,305.70 - (2,642,624.41)
Operating expenses 45,609,619.28 29,796,707.07 - 75,406,326.35
Operating profit/(loss) 89,974,917.06 (16,620,182.37) - 73,354,734.69
Segment assets 4,765,120,565.74 1,936,455,349.55 (1,948,900,283.92) 4,752,675,631.37
Segment liabilities 3,210,750,031.41 1,867,398,980.79 (1,551,344,283.92) 3,526,804,728.28
Additional information:
Depreciation and amortization 6,511,565.63 4,007,300.71 - 10,518,866.34
Capital expenditures 797,506.60 2,466,462.26 - 3,263,968.86
Include: Expenditures on
purchasing fixed assets 70,800.00 1,532,686.02 - 1,603,486.02
Expenditures on
long-term prepayments 576,283.60 933,776.24 - 1,510,059.84
Expenditures on
intangible assets 150,423.00 - - 150,423.00
(1) External revenue categorized by products or businesses
2011 2010
RMB RMB
Commercial Banking 43,327,067.66 49,440,433.16
Sales and Trading 112,900,893.42 99,320,627.88
Total 156,227,961.08 148,761,061.04
(2) External revenue categorized by regions
2011 2010
RMB RMB
Domestic external revenue 79,078,538.07  62,033,699.16
Overseas external revenue 77,149,423.01  86,727,361.88
Total 156,227,961.08  148,761,061.04

(3) Non-current assets categorized by assets locations
The Bank's non-current assets are located in China.
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45. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(4) Key client's dependency
The Bank does not have significant dependency relationship with non-related party.

Inter-segment transfers are measured on the basis of actual transaction price for such transfers.
Segment revenue and segment expenses are determined on the basis of actual revenue and
expenses of the segments respectively.

46. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Related party with controlling relationship:

Share proportion
Name Place of registration Principal business Registered capital in the Bank

Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited United Kingdom Financial service GBP790,000,000.00 100%

There are no changes in registered capital and share proportion in the Bank occurred for the
shareholder of the Bank, Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited. The Bank’s ultimate
parent is Morgan Stanley.

(2) The following are other related parties which have transactions with the Bank with no
controlling relationship exists:

Name Place of registration Related party relationship
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited Hong Kong, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Properties (China) Co., Ltd Beijing, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy

(Beijing) Company Limited Beijing, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Information Technology

(Shanghai) Limited Shanghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Commaodities Trading (China) Limited Shanghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Management Service

(Shanghai) Limited Shanghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy

(Shanghai) Limited Shanghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Business Consulting (Shanghai) Limited Shanghai, China Subsidiary of the parent group
Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund Management Shenzhen, China  Related party directly or indirectly

Company Limited controlled by parent group
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (China), Ltd Shanghai, China Subsidiary of investor which has

significant influence over the parent group

The related parties of the Bank also includes key management personnel, their close family
members or entities which are subject to control, joint control or significant influence from
key management personnel’s close family members. Transactions between the Bank and the
related parties that are significant are disclosed separately and those that are not significant are
disclosed together.
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46. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

(3) As of balance sheet date, the significant transactions between the Bank and the above related

parties for the year are as follows:

Interest income

2011 2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited - - 2,297,146.64 2.45
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd 17,852.53 0.01 - -
Interest expenses
2011 2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited 1,253,154.06 0.84 467,753.30 1.38
Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd. 246,510.17 0.17 241,489.80 0.71
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd 607,797.22 0.41 - -
Total 2,107,461.45 1.42 709,243.10 2.09
Fee and commission income
2011 2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited 79,479,248.09 88.52 66,227,089.09 66.79
Morgan Stanley Commodities Trading
(China) Limited 1,250,000.00 1.39 1,590,000.00 1.60
Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited 325,000.00 0.36 - -
Morgan Stanley Business Consulting
(Shanghai) Limited 100,000.00 0.11 - -
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Shanghai) Co. Limited 65,000.00 0.07 - -
Morgan Stanley Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited 50,000.00 0.06 - -
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Company Limited 30,000.00 0.03 25,000.00 0.03
Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund
Management Company Limited 30,000.00 0.03 25,000.00 0.03
Total 81,329,248.09 90.57 67,867,089.09 68.45
Fee and commission expenses
2011 2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd 1,187,507.18 24.55 46,265.99 0.61
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46.

parties for the year are as follows: - continued

Operating expenses

Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
Morgan Stanley Information

Technology (Shanghai) Limited

Total

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

(3) As of balance sheet date, the significant transactions between the Bank and the above related

2011 2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
- - 3,311,350.00 5.13
1,200,000.00 1.94 1,200,000.00 1.86
1,200,000.00 1.94 4,511,350.00 6.99

The Bank has business with related parties in the course of daily business according to

ordinary business terms.

are as follows:

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

(4) As of balance sheet date, the major balances between the Bank and the above related parties

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd 126,018,000.00 5.74 - -
Interest receivable
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd 17,852.53 0.05 - -
Placements from banks and other financial institutions
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited 135,469,350.00 81.87 98,678,230.00 30.96
Customer deposits
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd. 36,571,358.59 1.41 38,186,666.28 2.14
Others 4,533.69 0.00 179.44 0.00
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Total 36,575,892.28 1.41 38,186,845.72 2.14

46. RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

(4) As of balance sheet date, the major balances between the Bank and the above related parties
are as follows: - continued

Interest payable

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited 1,194,163.96 7.04 52,409.07 0.73
Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd. 8,126.96 0.05 1,909.32 0.03
Other - - 0.02 0.00
Total 1,202,290.92 7.09 54,318.41 0.76
Other assets
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited 4,107,836.53 16.50 26,242,976.84 7.84
Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited 119,395.94 0.48 6,300.51 0.00
Total 4,227,232.47 16.98 26,249,277.35 7.84
Other liabilities
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited 3,180,400.44 15.04 3,442,064.44 26.08
Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited 200,000.00 0.95 - -
Morgan Stanley Information
Technology (Shanghai) Limited - - 300,000.00 2.27
Total 3,380,400.44 15.99 3,742,064.44 28.35

175

-47 -



JEERR A [ BT (P ) A R 7
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

46.

47.

48.

49.

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

(5) Compensation of key management personnel

2011 2010
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
Compensation of key
management personnel 5,611,313.60 17.24 4,650,391.10 15.84

Key management personnel are those who have the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Bank.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Letters of guarantee 193,190,400.00 4,550,200.00
FIDUCIARY ASSETS
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
Entrusted deposit 483,000,000.00  323,000,000.00
Entrusted loan 483,000,000.00  323,000,000.00

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Bank calculated capital adequacy and core capital adequacy ratios according to the “Rules
Governing Commercial Bank’s Capital Adequacy Ratio” (CBRC Year 2004 No.2 regulation) are

as follows:

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
Risk weighted assets 629,131 876,284

Market risk capital 51,773 76,898

Capital net value 1,287,499 1,225,555
Include: Core capital 1,270,216 1,215,410

Subordinated capital 17,283 10,145
Core capital adequacy ratio 99.52% 66.14%
Capital adequacy ratio 100.88% 66.70%
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50.

51,

(1

COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank had the following commitments in respect of
non-cancellable operating leases:

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
The minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases:
Within one year 5,747 3,340
In the second year 5,747 69
In the third year 4,164 -

Total 15,658 3,409

RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview of risk management
(1) Overview of risks

The Bank is exposed to various risks in its business operations, especially the use of financial
instruments, risks are becoming diversified and complicated. The key risks faced by the Bank
are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. Market risks include foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk.

The Bank's risk management objectives are to achieve proper balance between risks and yield,
minimize the adverse impacts of risks on the Bank's performance, and maximize the benefits
of the Bank. Based on these risk management objectives, the Bank's basic risk management
strategy is to identify and analyze the industry's exposure to various risks, establish appropriate
bottom line for risk tolerance, implement risk management, and monitor these exposures to
ensure appropriate measurements are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for establishing the Bank's overall risk
management strategies, monitoring and evaluating the Bank's risk management and internal
control system by Risk Management Committee, Credit Management Committee,
Assets/Liabilities Committee, Compliance Committee, Senior Management Committee and
other committees.
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51.  RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(1) Creditrisk
(1) Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when the borrower or counterparty fails to meet the required obligations in
the agreement on due date.

The Bank's credit risk mainly arises from credit business. Under the leadership of Risk
Management Committee, the Bank has implemented the lending and risks management
policies, carries out credit investigation and assessment before credit lending and grants credits
according to limit approved. The Bank has established policies related to daily loans and
post-lending management, credit classification, interest calculation and accrual, and loan
provision accrual and write-off (report on doubtful loans etc.). The Bank management team
monitors and supervises the above mentioned credit risks limit. The Bank controls credit risks
through credit investigation and evaluates counterparties financial and operational conditions.
The Bank assesses the clients according to the internal credit classification standards and
provides facility to clients, and the clients are permitted to borrow within the approved facility.

(2) Maximum credit risk exposure information

Without taking into account of any collateral held or any other credit enhancement, the
maximum credit risk exposure as of the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of financial
assets less impairment loss. The maximum credit risk exposure is disclosed below:

31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB

On-balance sheet items
Loans and advances to customers 727,678,211.04 968,681,000.00
Inter-banks receivable 2,567,633,014.69 894,475,324.53
Include: Due from banks 370,676,314.69 228,248,324.53

Placements with banks and other financial

institutions 2,196,956,700.00 666,227,000.00
Financial assets held for trading 1,755,557,401.00 2,529,763,390.00
Interest receivable 33,172,065.33 25,013,920.47
Other financial assets 5,380,243.51 27,403,578.76
Total on-balance sheet items 5,089,886,235.57 4,445,337,213.76
Total off-balance sheet items 193,190,400.00 4,550,200.00
Total 5,283,076,635.57 4,449,887,413.76

Other financial assets include security deposit, fees receivable etc.

Except for clean loans, certain credit enhancement measures such as guarantee, pledge are
taken by the Bank for other loans, off-balance sheet items etc, to mitigate credit risk exposure

to an acceptable level.
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51.

(1)

RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit risk - continued

(3) Loans and advances to customers and inter-banks receivables
Overdue and impaired

(i) As of the year end of 2011, the Bank has nil overdue or impaired loans and advances to
customers and inter-banks receivable. (2010: Nil)

(ii) Not overdue and not impaired

31/12/2011
Normal Total
RMB RMB
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans 728,143,511.04  728,143,511.04
Inter-banks receivable 2,567,633,014.69 2,567,633,014.69
31/12/2010
Normal Total
RMB RMB
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans 968,681,000.00 968,681,000.00
Inter-banks receivable 894,475,32453  894,475,324.53

For loans and advances to customers and inter-banks receivable not overdue and not
impaired, the Bank has provided provision according to collective assessment.

(4) Financial assets held for trading

31/12/2011 31/12/2010

RMB RMB
Neither overdue nor impaired
Bonds held for trading (i) 1,755,557,401.00 2,529,763,390.00
(i) Bonds held for trading
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
AA3 - 211,599,030.00
Not rated (Note) 1,755,557,401.00 2,318,164,360.00
Total 1,755,557,401.00 2,529,763,390.00

179
-51-



JEERR A [ BT (P ) A R 7
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

51.
(I

()

RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Credit risk - continued
(4) Financial asset held for trading - continued
(i) Bonds held for trading - continued
The above ratings reference to Moody's bond rating.

Note: The "Not rated” investments in debt securities mainly include PBOC bills, financial
institution bonds and corporate bonds held by the Bank. All corporate bonds are
rated as A above in China Bond rating.

(5) Analysis on credit risk concentration of financial assets

The Bank manages credit risk concentration of financial assets by industry, relevant analysis
can refer to note 12(2).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity refers to the assets that have quick cash conversion ability without any value impaired.
Liquidity risk is the risk of loss or bankruptcy raised from the Bank’s failure to provide sufficient
funds for the decrease in liability or the increase in assets. Liquidity risk can also be caused by the
mismatch between the amount and maturity between assets and liabilities.

(1) Liquidity risk management

According to the Law of the People's Republic of China on Commercial Bank and related
regulations, the Bank needs to maintain liquidity ratio of not less than 25%. At the same
time, the Bank manages liquidity risk according to the maturity date of assets and liabilities.

To manage liquidity risk, the Bank established Liquidity and Funding Risk Management
Policy, which includes the following:

(i) Corporate Treasury and Trading Desk closely monitor the structure of RMB and
foreign currency position, term, limit, and cost of maintaining liquidity.

(i)  Assets/Liabilities Committee meeting is held monthly to review liquidity risk, market
risk and credit risk, and to discuss the optimal assets and liabilities structure.

(iii) Assets/Liabilities Committee reviews the assets and liabilities management report (ALCO
report) and and activitiy pipelines to ensure that there are sufficient liquidity and appropriate
funding plans.
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51. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(1) Liquidity risk - continued
(2) Analysis on liquidity risk of non-derivative instruments
The following is the maturity analysis for assets and liabilities held by the Bank:

The following table presents the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flow of the Bank
for non-derivative financial assets and liabilities as at balance sheet date.

31/12/2011
Current Within
& overdue one month 1-3 months 3-12 months Over 1 year No maturity date Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 47,711 - - - - 481,315 529,026
Due from banks 71,082 300,654 - - - - 371,736
Placements with banks and
other financial institution 1,701,445 257,813 - 248,159 - - 2,207,417
Financial assets held for trading - 1,775,785 - - - - 1,775,785
Loans and advances
to customers - 93,186 108,451 360,541 207,806 - 769,984
Other financial assets - 4,112 119 - 1,209 5,440
Total financial assets 1,820,238 2,431,550 108,451 608,819 207,806 482,524 5,659,388
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions 3 - - 493,502 - - 493,505
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions - - - 169,941 - - 169,941
Repurchase agreements - 1,081,402 - - - - 1,081,402
Customer deposits 71,253 842,505 254,938 1,491,135 - - 2,659,831
Other financial liabilities - 16,805 560 - - 2,228 19,593
Total financial liabilities 71,256 1,940,712 255,498 2,154,578 - 2,228 4,424,272
Net value 1,748,982 490,838 (147,047) (1,545,759) 207,806 480,296 1,235,116
31/12/2010
Current Within
& overdue one month 1-3 months 3-12 months Over 1 year No maturity date Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 232,247 - - - - 32,675 264,922
Due from banks 228,248 - - - - - 228,248
Placements with banks and
other financial institution - 600,700 66,438 - - - 667,138
Financial assets held for trading - 2,347,299 201,392 - - 2,548,691
Loans and advances
to customers - 806 508,476 283,824 219,229 - 1,012,335
Other financial assets 120 26,253 - 6 - 1,025 27,404
Total financial assets 460,615 2,975,058 776,306 283,830 219,229 33,700 4,748,738
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions 3 - - 177,368 - - 177,371
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions - - 222,198 98,730 - - 320,928
Repurchase agreements 192,165 822,860 201,845 - - - 1,216,870
Customer deposits 70,191 - 214,187 1,546,008 - - 1,830,386
Other financial liabilities - 5,480 - - 2,041 301 7,822
Total financial liabilities 262,359 828,340 638,230 1,822,106 2,041 301 3,553,377
Net value 198,256 2,146,718 138,076 (1,538,276) 217,188 33,399 1,195,361
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51.

(V)

RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Market risks

Market risks refer to the risks of losses in the Bank’s on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet
business due to adverse changes in market prices. The Bank’s market risks mainly include foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Bank manages its market risk through limit management
(including trading limit, risk limit and stop loss limit), daily review of risk sensitivities, bond market
value, and market risk capital management. Market risk manager is responsible for monitoring of
market risks and periodically reports to Assets/Liabilities Committee. The Bank has established
and enhanced market risk limit management system, specified and standardized the process and
reporting of market risk management. The internal audit department performs audit on market
risks management on a regular basis. The Bank has started stress testing to monitor the possible
market risk under specific adverse incident in order to improve market risk management.

(1) Foreign exchange risk

The Bank is set up and operates in China, the Bank’s foreign currency business is mainly in
USD and HKD. The Bank's loans to customers are mainly in RMB and USD.

The Bank monitors the foreign exchange risk mainly through the management of exposure
limits.

The following table presents the structure analysis of the Bank’s financial assets and
financial liabilities by currencies as at balance sheet date:

31/12/2011
usD HKD Other currencies
RMB in RMB egv. in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. Total
RMB’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 526,750 1,859 97 - 528,706
Due from banks 307,892 46,620 16,164 - 370,676
Placements with banks and
other financial institution 1,800,000 396,957 - - 2,196,957
Financial assets held for trading 1,755,557 - - - 1,755,557
Interest receivable 24,865 8,307 - - 33,172
Loans and advances to customers 544,500 183,644 - - 728,144
Other financial assets 1,209 4,166 5 - 5,380
Total financial assets 4,960,773 641,553 16,266 - 5,618,592
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 476,982 - - - 476,982
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions 30,000 135,469 - - 165,469
Repurchase agreements 1,080,300 - - - 1,080,300
Customer deposits 2,563,046 37,025 59 - 2,600,130
Interest payable 15,768 1,202 - - 16,970
Other financial liabilities 226,598 (208,755) 1,750 - 19,593
Total financial liabilities 4,392,694 (35,059) 1,809 - 4,359,444
Net open position 568,079 676,612 14,457 - 1,259,148
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51. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(IV)  Market risks - continued

(1) Foreign exchange risk - continued

31/12/2010
usD HKD Other currencies
RMB in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. in RMB eqv. Total
RMB’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 259,398 5,232 221 - 264,851
Due from banks 5,354 202,266 20,581 47 228,248
Placements with banks and
other financial institution 600,000 66,227 - - 666,227
Financial assets held for trading 2,529,763 - - - 2,529,763
Interest receivable 22,075 2,939 - - 25,014
Loans and advances to customers 770,000 198,681 - - 968,681
Other financial assets (98,192) 125,590 6 - 27,404
Total financial assets 4,088,398 600,935 20,808 47 4,710,188
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 173,176 - - - 173,176
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions 220,000 98,678 - - 318,678
Repurchase agreements 1,212,000 - - - 1,212,000
Customer deposits 1,678,683 104,559 2,527 - 1,785,769
Interest payable 7,055 150 - - 7,205
Other financial liabilities 2,470 3,627 1,825 - 7,822
Total financial liabilities 3,293,384 206,914 4,352 - 3,504,650
Net open position 795,014 394,021 16,456 47 1,205,538

The following table illustrates the impact of 5% appreciation or 5% depreciation of the spot
exchange rate and forward exchange rate of RMB against all foreign currencies owner's
equity of the Bank.

2011 2010
Increase/(Decrease)in Increase/(Decrease)in
Owner’s equity Owner’s equity
RMB’000 RMB’000
Appreciate by 5% (25,915) (8,068)
Depreciate by 5% 25,915 8,068

(2) Interest rate risks

Interest rate risk is the impact of change in market interest rate on fair value of financial
assets and liabilities of the balance sheet and interest income and expenses of the income
statement for the period. The Bank's foreign exchange business lending rates and large
amount deposit rates primarily fluctuates with the Bank’s funding cost while the RMB
business lending and deposit rates fluctuates within the permitted range provided by the
PBOC. The inter-bank placements and takings interest rates are determined by the market.

183
-55-



FERL - PR R B RAT (o Py 2

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

51. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(IV)  Market risks - continued

@)

Interest rate risk - continued

As of the balance sheet date, the interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Bank are as

follows:

Financial assets

Balances with the Central Bank

Due from banks
Placements with banks and
other financial institution

Financial assets held for trading

Interest receivable

Loans and advances to customers

Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and

other financial institutions
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions

Repurchase agreements

Customer deposits

Interest payable

Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Net open position

Financial assets

Balances with the Central Bank

Due from banks
Placements with banks and
other financial institution

Financial assets held for trading

Interest receivable

Loans and advances to customers

Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and

other financial institutions
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions

Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Interest payable

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net open position

31/12/2011
Non-
Within 1 month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years interest bearing ~ Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
47,391 - - - - 481,315 528,706
370,676 - - - - - 370,676
1,957,523 - 239,434 - - - 2,196,957
640,715 504,389 136,800 473,653 - - 1,755,557
- - - - - 33,172 33,172
90,075 588,569 49,500 - - - 728,144
- - - - - 5,380 5,380
3,106,380 1,092,958 425,734 473,653 - 519,867 5,618,592
3 - 476,979 - - - 476,982
- - 165,469 - - - 165,469
1,080,300 - - - - - 1,080,300
905,834 252,932 1,441,364 - - - 2,600,130
- - - - - 16,970 16,970
- - - - - 19,593 19,593
1,986,137 252,932 2,083,812 - - 36,563 4,359,444
1,120,243 840,026 (1,658,078) 473,653 - 483,304 1,259,148
31/12/2010
Non-
Within 1 month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years interest bearing ~ Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
259,398 - - - - 5,453 264,851
228,248 - - - - - 228,248
600,000 66,227 - - - - 666,227
- 793,584 300,779 512,143 923,257 - 2,529,763
- - - - - 25,014 25,014
- 599,341 369,340 - - - 968,681
- - - - - 27,404 27,404
1,087,646 1,459,152 670,119 512,143 923,257 57,871 4,710,188
3 - 173,173 - - - 173,176
98,678 220,000 - - - - 318,678
1,012,000 200,000 - - - - 1,212,000
70,164 211,512 1,504,093 - - - 1,785,769
- - - - - 7,205 7,205
- - - - - 7,822 7,822
1,180,845 631,512 1,677,266 - - 15,027 3,504,650
(93,199) 827,640 (1,007,147) 512,143 923,257 42,844 1,205,538
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51. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(IV)  Market risks - continued

(2) Interest rate risk - continued
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rates gap between the interest
bearing assets such as balances with the Central Bank; due from banks and other financial
institutions; loans and other receivables and interest bearing liabilities such as customer
deposits as of the balance sheet date. The upward and downward change of 50 basis points
is used by management in evaluating the possible changes in interest rates and the
corresponding interest rate risks.

The following table illustrates the impact of the increase or decrease of the interest rate of all
currencies by 50 basis points on the owner's equity of the Bank in next year, based on the
structure of interest-bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities as of the balance sheet

date.
2011 2010
Increase/(Decrease)in Increase/(Decrease)in
Owner’s equity Owner’s equity
RMB’000 RMB’000
Increase by 50 basis points (14,561) (41,375)
Decrease by 50 basis points 14,561 41,375

52. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The valuation of the fair value is determined based on market related information and financial
instruments related information at a specific time. When determining the fair value of financial
instruments, the Bank considers the market price as the best approximation of the fair value of the
financial instruments for which there is an active market. For financial instruments of which the
market does not exist, the Bank adopts other valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
these financial assets and financial liabilities (details please refer to note 4).

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

e The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices;

e The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis or observable market prices;

e The fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discount cash flow analysis is performed using the applicable
yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.
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52. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

The following table illustrates the fair values of the Bank’s financial assets and financial

liabilities:
31/12/2011 31/12/2010
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Financial assets
Balances with the
Central Bank 528,706,078.17 528,706,078.17 264,850,689.42 264,850,689.42
Due from banks 370,676,314.69 370,676,314.69 228,248,324.52 228,248,324.52
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions2,196,956,700.00 2,196,956,700.00 666,227,000.00 666,227,000.00
Financial assets
held for trading 1,755,557,401.00 1,755,557,401.00 2,529,763,390.00 2,529,763,390.00
Interest receivable 33,172,065.33 33,172,065.33 25,013,920.47 25,013,920.47
Loans and advances to
customers 728,143,511.04 728,143,511.04 968,681,000.00 968,681,000.00
Other financial assets 5,380,243.51 5,380,243.51 27,403,578.76 27,403,578.76
Total financial assets 5,618,592,313.74 5,618,592,313.74  4,710,187,903.17 4,710,187,903.17
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 476,982,076.68 476,982,076.68 173,175,536.74 173,175,536.74
Placements from banks and
other financial institutions 165,469,350.00 165,469,350.00 318,678,230.00 318,678,230.00
Repurchase agreements 1,080,300,000.00 1,080,300,000.00 1,212,000,000.00 1,212,000,000.00
Customer deposits 2,600,129,771.29  2,600,129,771.29  1,785,769,494.51 1,785,769,494.51
Interest payable 16,969,678.60 16,969,678.60 7,204,459.50 7,204,459.50
Other financial liabilities 19,593,304.55 19,593,304.55 7,821,871.45 7,821,871.45
Total financial liabilities 4,359,444,181.12  4,359,444,181.12  3,504,649,592.20 3,504,649,592.20

Level of fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3: fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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52. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

31/12/2011
Level 3
RMB Equivalent

Total
RMB Equivalent

Level 1
RMB Equivalent

Level 2
RMB Equivalent

Held-for-trading financial assets - 1,755,557,401.00 - 1,755,557,401.00
Financial assets total - 1,755,557,401.00 - 1,755,557,401.00
31/12/2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

RMB Equivalent RMB Equivalent RMB Equivalent RMB Equivalent

2,529,763,390.00
2,529,763,390.00

Held-for-trading financial assets - 2,529,763,390.00 -

2,529,763,390.00 -

Financial assets total -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the years of 2011 and 2010.

The total change in fair value derived from the FVTPL held by the Bank is RMB 42,455,570.30
(2010: loss of RMB 22,861,225.75), with nil amount booked in other comprehensive income.

The Bank employs control processes to validate the fair value of its financial instruments,
including those derived from pricing models. These control processes are designed to assure that
the values used for financial reporting are based on observable inputs wherever possible. In the
event that observable inputs are not available, the control processes are designed to assure that the
valuation approach utilised is appropriate and consistently applied and that the assumptions are
reasonable. These control processes include reviews of the pricing model’s theoretical soundness
and appropriateness by Morgan Stanley Group personnel with relevant expertise who are
independent from the trading desks.

Additionally, groups independent from the trading divisions within the financial control, market
risk and credit risk management departments participate in the review and validation of the fair
values generated from pricing models, as appropriate. Where a pricing model is used to determine
fair value, recently executed comparable transactions and other observable market data are
considered for purposes of validating assumptions underlying the model.

In the current year, the Bank’s financial assets measured at fair value comprise the government
bonds, PBOC bills, financial institution bonds and corporate bonds. These financial assets are
valued using quoted prices in active markets when available. To the extent quoted prices are not
available, fair value is determined based on a valuation model that has as inputs interest rate yield
curves, cross-currency basis index spreads, and country credit spreads for structures similar to the
bond in terms of issuer, maturity and seniority. These financial assets are generally categorised
in Levels 1 or 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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53. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

54.  APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Bank have been approved on April 12th 2012 by the Board of
Directors.

* * END OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * *
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ATTACHED APPENDIX IS NOT PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Appendix (I)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

Taxable Income Reconciliation
For the year ended at 31 December 2011

Total profit before tax

Add:

S

AN

Less:

Eal

Overseas employee offshore pension
Commercial insurance expenses
Penalty occurred for this year
Amortisation expenses on intangible assets
in excess of tax deductible amount
Entertainment expenses in excess of tax deductible amount
Change in fair value arised from the investment property
Long term service fee and employee benefit

Reversal of impairment loss

Non taxable Government bonds interest income
Loss from changes in fair values

Pre-paid expenses not deductible before tax

Taxable income for the year

Total
RMB

72,138,931.90

331,410.02
789,100.09
783.59

944,502.41
142,856.01
636,173.00
1,336,637.74

4,181,462.86

5,155,187.00
1,121,459.09
42,455,570.30
160,900.00

48,893,116.39

27,427,278.37

Remarks: The Bank prepares this “Taxable Income Reconciliation” according to the request from
Tax Bureau. This report is for reference only and does not form part of the audited

financial statements.
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Appendix (II)

Part (1)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, THE HEAD OFFICE

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

ASSETS
Balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Due from inter-branch

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Financial assets held for trading
Interest receivable

Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial instruments
Investment property

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Operating fund to Branch

TOTAL ASSETS

192

31/12/2011
RMB

496,332,588.30
367,705,675.95
1,115,286.13
2,196,956,700.00
1,755,557,401.00
31,357,968.11
378,143,511.04
18,852,614.00
2,640,774.16
5,458,379.62
23,416,577.55
100,000,000.00

31/12/2010
RMB

264,784,205.12
223,573,363.29
167,946,552.79
600,000,000.00
2,529,763,390.00
21,135,748.78
499,340,500.00
19,488,787.00
2,820,365.61
5,196,693.32
4,155,439.36
33,514,959.83
100,000,000.00

5,377,537,475.86

4,471,720,005.10

(Continued)



JEAR L PR B ARAT (b D) AT R 7
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

Appendix (II)

Part (1)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, THE HEAD OFFICE

BALANCE SHEET - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions
Due to inter-branch
Placements from banks and other financial institutions
Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Employee benefit payable
Current tax
Interest payable
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OWNER'S EQUITY
Paid-in capital
Surplus reserves
Capital reserves
General reserves
Retained earnings

TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY
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31/12/2011 31/12/2010
RMB RMB
459.51 2,561.74

1,742,937,646.33 1,383,397,731.13
165,469,350.00 318,678,230.00
1,080,300,000.00 1,212,000,000.00
1,003,661,720.73  268,970,919.90
1,041,877.88 1,288,372.24
9,952,777.48 8,550,404.00
11,988,303.68 5,529,120.84
6,686,815.13 -
20,034,913.21 12,332,691.56

4,042,073,863.94 3,210,750,031.41

1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
44,966,409.60  39,503,162.77
(46,319.58) -
33,316,907.91  21,077,745.89
257,226,613.99  200,389,065.03

1,335,463,611.92 1,260,969,973.69

5,377,537,475.86 4,471,720,005.10
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Appendix (II)

Part (1)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, THE HEAD OFFICE

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Operating income
Net interest income

Interest income

Interest income- inter branch
Interest expenses

Interest expenses- inter branch

Net fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Investment income

Losses from changes in fair value
Exchange gains/(losses)

Other operating income

Operating expenses

Business tax and surcharges
Operating expenses
Impairment reversal on assets

Operating profit

Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Less: Income tax expenses

NET PROFIT

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2011
RMB

133,908,241.71

2010
RMB

135,584,536.34

55,342,596.48

51,564,896.39

204,545,000.36
1,567,340.94
98,109,896.50
52,659,848.32

84,736,769.00

82,944,824.72
2,312,397.94
32,129,505.96
1,562,820.31

86,684,570.06

87,994,673.61
3,257,904.61

(28,154,695.62)
41,819,397.30
(21,042,796.97)

1,206,971.52

94,320,498.72
7,635,928.66

9,635,143.22
(21,791,297.75)
8,284,252.90
1,206,971.52

42,996,409.91

45,609,619.28

13,308,658.78
21,867,466.17

10,164,829.75
35,444,789.53

7,820,284.96 -
90,911,831.80  89,974,917.06
272,326.51 2,128.83
39,798.53 357,249.37

91,144,359.78

89,619,796.52

16,604,401.97

12,446,096.55

74,539,957.81

77,173,699.97

(46,319.58)

104 74,493,638.23

77,173,699.97
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Appendix (II)

Part (II)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, BEIJING BRANCH

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

ASSETS
Balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Due from the Head Office
Placements with banks
Interest Receivables
Loans and advances to customers
Fixed assets
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions
Due to the Head Office
Customer deposits
Employee benefit payable
Current tax
Interest payable
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

OWNER'S EQUITY
Operating fund
Capital reserves
Retained earnings

TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY
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31/12/2011
RMB

32,373,489.87
2,970,638.74
1,742,937,646.33
1,814,097.22
350,000,000.00
3,840,883.64
1,475,963.69

31/12/2010
RMB

66,484.30
4,674,961.24
1,383,397,731.13
66,227,000.00
3,878,171.69
469,340,500.00
5,137,958.02
3,732,543.17

2,135,412,719.49

1,936,455,349.55

476,981,617.17
1,115,286.13
1,596,468,050.56
4,693,120.34
1,194,175.21
4,981,374.92
(71,271.26)
1,115,300.97

173,172,975.00
167,946,552.79
1,516,798,574.61
3,463,729.87
3,475,976.39
1,675,338.66

865,833.47

2,086,477,654.04

1,867,398,980.79

100,000,000.00
(213,813.78)
(50,851,120.77)

100,000,000.00

(30,943,631.24)

48,935,065.45

69,056,368.76

2,135,412,719.49 1,936,455,349.55
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Appendix (II)

Part (II)

MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED, BEIJING BRANCH

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Operating income
Net interest income

Interest income

Interest income inter-branch
Interest expenses

Interest expenses inter-branch

Net fee and commission income/(expenses)

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses
Exchange gains

Operating expenses

Business tax and surcharges
Operating expenses

Operating loss

Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expense

LOSS BEFORE TAX
Less: Income tax expenses

NET LOSS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

196

2011 2010

RMB RMB
22,319,719.37 13,176,524.70
22,080,008.28 8,324,225.70
21,495,893.20 10,862,969.88
52,659,848.32 1,562,820.31
50,508,392.30 1,789,166.55
1,567,340.94 2,312,397.94
212,308.55 4,829,993.30
1,791,056.54 4,831,371.80
1,578,747.99 1,378.50
27,402.54 22,305.70
41,382,700.25 29,796,707.07
1,265,499.83 733,147.40

40,117,200.42

29,063,559.67

(19,062,980.88)

(16,620,182.37)

57,586.59 1,153,714.09
33.59 -

(19,005,427.88)  (15,466,468.28)

902,061.65 3,467,630.52

(19,907,489.53)

(18,934,098.80)

(213,813.78)

(20,121,303.31)

(18,934,098.80)
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